DETAILED PROJECT REPORT (DPR)

FOR

DEVELOPMENT OF NOORANIBAGH PARK (WARD NO.-53, PHASE-2) AT PATNA

VOLUME 2: BID DOCUMENT

MANAGING DIRECTOR

Bihar Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd. (BUIDCO) #303, Third Floor, Maurya Tower, Maurya Lok Complex, Budh Marg, Patna-800 001

October, 2011



Bihar Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd. (A Govt. of Bihar Undertaking)

BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR NOORANIBAGH PARKS (WARD NO. 53, PHASE-2) AT PATNA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sl. No.	Descriptions					
1	Local / National competitive bidding (Community Park Development Works)					
2	PRESS NOTICE					
3	PART A: Instructions to Bidders					
4	SECTION 1: General conditions of contract					
5	SECTION 2 : Special condition of contract (Condition of Particular Application)					
6	SECTION 3 : Securities and other forms (To be filled by Bidder)					
7	PART B: To Be Filled Up By The Tenderer					
8	PART C : For Official Use Only					
9	SECTION 4: Bill of Quantities (BOQ)					

Table of Clauses

Clause No.	Clause Descriptions				
GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT					
1	Interpretation				
2	Scope of Bid				
3	One Bid per Bidder				
4	Cost of Bidding				
5	Non transferable				
6	Language of the Bid				
7 Pre-bid meeting					
8	Amendment of Bidding Documents				
9	Eligibility Criteria				
10	Detailed Drawings and Instructions				
11	Copies Furnished				
12	Ownership of Drawing				
13	Failure By applicant Firms to Comply with				
	Corporation's Instruction				
14	Selected Firms Shall Visit the Site				
15	Tenders				
16	Agreement				
Permits and Licenses					
18	Government and Local Rules				
19	Taxes and Duties				
20	Provisional Sums (P.S.)				
21	Quantity of Work to be Executed				
22	Other Persons Engaged by the Corporation				
23	Earnest Money and Security Deposit / Retention				
	Money				
24	Contractor to Provide Everything Necessary				

25	Time and Extension for Delay				
26	Liquidated Damages				
27	27 Site Engineer				
28	Labour Laws to be complied by the Contractor				
29	Payment of Wages				
Minimum wages Act to be complied with.					
31	Work not to be sublet. Action in case of insolvency				
32	Compensation				
33	Contractor's Employees				
34	Dismissal of Workmen				
35	Assignment				
36	Nominated Subcontractor				
37	Damage to Persons and Property, Insurance etc.				
38	Responsibility of Technical Staff and employees				
39 Contractor's Risks					
40	Levy/taxes payable by constructor				
41 Insurance					
42 Account Receipts and Vouchers					
43	Measurement of Work				
44	Action Where No Specification				
45	Contractor not to Deposit Materials in Manner that				
	May Cause Inconvenience to the Public				
46	Payments				
47	Payment of Final Bill				
48	Work to be Executed in Accordance with				
	Specifications, Drawings, Orders etc.				
49	Approval of materials and supply equipments				
50 Variation / Deviation					
51 Substitution					
52	Preparation of Building Work For Occupation & Use				

	on Completion		
53	Cleaning Site on Completion		
54	Contractor Liable for Damages, defects during		
	maintenance period		
55	Concealed Work		
56	Escalation		
57	Idle Labour		
58	Suspension of Work		
59	Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment		
Performance Guarantee			
Recovery of Security Deposit			
62	Time and Extension for Delay		
63	Mobilization advance		
64	Approval of Engineer In charge		
65	Cost of Samples		
66	Cost of Tests		
67	Recovery		
68	Action where no Specifications are specified		
69	Commencement of Works		
70	Substational completion of parts		
71	Force Majeure		
72	Termination of Contract by the Corporation		
73	Arbitration		
	SPECIAL CONDITION		

LOCAL/NATIONAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING (PARK DEVELOPMENT WORKS)

1.	Name of work: Construction of Nooranibagh Park (ward no. 53, Phase 2) at Patna
2.	Period of construction: 6 (Six) Months
3.	Date of issue of notice:
4.	Inviting bid: BUIDCo/
5.	Period and place of sale of bid document : Only from office of BUIDCo
6.	Time, date & place of pre-bid meeting :
7.	Period date and time for receipt of bids: uptohours
8.	Time and date of opening technical bids: upto hours
9.	Time and date of opening financial bids: working days or to be confirmed by letter or email.
10.	Place of opening of bids: # 303 3rd Floor, Maurya Tower, Mauryalok Complex, Budh Marg, Patna-800 001
11.	Last date of bid validity: days
12.	Officer inviting bids: Managing Director, BUIDCo., Patna

INVITATION FOR BID (IFB)

Date: 30.09.2011



Bihar Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd. (BUIDCo)

(A Govt. of Bihar Undertaking)

#303, 3rd Floor, Maurya Tower, Mauryalok Complex, Budh Marg, Patna – 800 001 Phone No.-91-612-2210101/02, Fax No.-91-612-2210103 Email: mdbuidco@gmail.com

NIT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF NOORANIBAGH PARK, AT PATNA

No. BUIDCo/PRJ/ NOORANIBAG PARK - 2011 - 22

1. Bihar Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd. (BUIDCo) invites tender from eligible agencies/contractors/firms for construction of Nooranibagh Park at Patna. The details of work is as below;

Seria No.	Name of Work	Estimated Cost	Amount of Earnest Money	Project Period
1	Development of Nooranibagh Park	72.00 Lakh.	1.44 Lakh	06 Months

2 Eligibility Criteria:-

- (i) The agencies should be registered in the prescribed authority.
- (ii) Total two years experience of successfully completion of work for construction of similar nature of park. Work completion certificate should be attached.
- (iii) Average annual turnover of the agencies/contractors/firms /proprietorship/partnership in last three year should be at least Rs. 72 lakh.
- (iv) Satisfactory completion of at least one similar work.

3. <u>Submissio</u>n

- (i) Forwarding Letter along with the non refundable demand draft of Rs. 5,000 (Five Thousand only) payable at Patna in favour of MD, Bihar Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation Ltd. Patna.
- (ii) Interested agencies/contractors/firms are advised to study the Eligibility criteria carefully as mentioned in the document before submitting their bids.
- (iii) The NIT should be submitted in one envelop which shall contain two separate envelop one for the Technical Bid and other for the Financial Bid. The Financial Bid will be opened only for those Bidders who will qualify technical evaluation.
- (iv) List of personnel with qualification and CV of key personnel
- (v) The document for the above work will also be available on website www.buidco.bih.nic.in it can be viewed and downloaded from the website from 12.10.2011 onwards by interested agencies/contractors/firms through tender section/ notice section.
- **4.** Interested agencies/contractors/firms may submit their bids in hard bound form along with list of content and their page nos. along with the requisite cost of the bid document. No bids will be accepted without cost of bid document. No liability will be accepted for downloading the incomplete document.
- 5. The Earnest money deposited should be in the form of Bank Guarantee, issued from any Nationalised/ scheduled bank valid up to bid validity period.
- 6. Sealed Completed bid documents along with the document fee in acceptable form will be received at the address mentioned above on any working day up to 24.10.2011 hours on 03:00 PM and bids shall be opened on same day at 03:30 PM at the above address.
- 7. The registration with BUIDCo will be essential after issue of LOA.
- **8.** Pre-Bid Meeting will take place **22.10.2011** at **3:00** pm at our office, Patna. All bidders are advised to go through the documents, visit the site(s) and raise their queries in writing before the pre-bid meeting during working hours. Bidders or their representative are requested to attend the pre-bid meeting and acquaint us with their views.
- 9. BUIDCo reserves the right to cancel all or any of the bids without assigning any reason thereof.
- 10. This document is not transferable.

Sd/-Managing Director, BUIDCo

PART A: INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

SECTION 1

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Except where provided for in the description of the individual items in the schedule of quantities and in the specifications and conditions laid down hereinafter and in the drawings, the work shall be carried out as per standard specifications and under the direction of Engineer-in-charge BUIDCo.

1. Interpretation

In constructing these conditions, the specifications, the schedule of quantities, tender and Agreement, the following words shall have the meaning herein assigned to them except where the subject or context otherwise requires:

- i. **Corporation**: The term Corporation shall denote with their Registered Office Bihar Urban Development Corporation (BUIDCo), Govt. of Bihar Undertaking or any of its employees as representative authorized on their behalf.
- ii. **Contractor:** The term Contractor shall mean M/s and his/their heirs, legal representative, assigns and successors.
- iii. **Site:** The site shall mean the site where the work are to be executed as shown in the drawing including any building and erections allotted by the Corporation for the Contractors' use.
- iv. **Site Engineer**: The Site Engineer shall be the person appointed by the Corporation for administration of all Community Park development and construction works.
- v. **Drawing**: The work is to be carried out in accordance with drawings, specifications, the schedule of quantities and any further drawings or any other instructions, which may be given by the Corporation, during the execution of the work.

All drawings relating to work given to the selected Firms together with a copy of schedule of quantities are to be kept at site and the Corporation shall be given access to such drawings or schedule of quantities whenever necessary. Detailed fabrication drawings where required are to be prepared by the Contractor and have these approved by Corporation before taking up execution. The Contractor shall ask in writing for all clarifications and schedule of quantities or to additional instructions at least 15 days ahead from the time when it is required for implementation so that the Corporation may be able to give decision thereon.

- vi. "The Work" shall mean the work to be executed or done under this contract.
- vii. "Act of Insolvency" shall mean any act as defined by the Presidency Town

Insolvency Act or in Provisional Insolvency Act or any amending statutes.

- viii. "The Schedule of Quantities" shall mean the schedule of quantities as specified and forming part of this contract.
- ix. "Priced Schedule of Quantities" shall mean the schedules of quantities duly priced with the accepted quoted rates of the contractor.

2. Scope of Bid

The park development work consists of civil works, Electrical Works and PHE works in accordance with the drawings and "Schedule of quantities". It includes furnishing all materials, labour, tools and equipment and management necessary for and incidental to the construction and completion of the work in conformity with designs, drawings, specifications, bill of quantities, etc. Should any detail, essential for efficient completion of the work be omitted from the drawings/specifications, it shall be the responsibility of the contractor to inform the Corporation and to furnish and install such detail with Corporation's concurrence, so that upon completion of the proposed work the same becomes acceptable.

Corporation may in their absolute discretion issue further drawings and/or written instructions, details, directions and explanations, which are hereafter collectively referred to as "The Corporation's instructions" in regard to:

- i. The variation or modification of the design quality or quantity of work or the addition or omission or substitution of any work.
- ii. Any discrepancy in the drawing or between the schedule of quantities and/or drawing and /or specifications.
- iii. The removal from the site of any defective material brought thereon by the contractor and the substitution of any other material thereof.
- iv. The demolition, removal and/or re-execution of any work executed by the contractor/s.
- v. The dismissal from the work of any person employed there upon.
- vi. The opening up for inspection of any work covered up.
- vii. The rectification and making good of any defects under clauses hereinafter mentioned and those arising during the Defect Liability period.

The contractor shall forthwith comply with and duly execute any work comprised in such Corporation's instruction provided always that the verbal instructions, directions and explanations given to contractor or his representative upon the work by the Corporation, if involving a variation, be confirmed in writing to the contractors immediately. No work for which rates are not specifically mentioned in the priced schedule of quantities, shall be taken up without written permission of the Corporation. Rates of items not mentioned in the

priced schedule of quantities shall be fixed by the Corporation as provided in Clause "Variation"

3. One Bid per Bidder

Each bidder shall submit only one bid for any work or one package or group. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one Bid (other than as a subcontractor or in cases of alternatives that have been permitted or requested) will cause all the proposals with the Bidder's participation to be disqualified.

4. Cost of Bidding

The bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his Bid, and BUIDCo will in no case be responsible and liable for those costs.

5. Non transferable

Tender documents are not transferable.

6. Language of the Bid

All documents relating to the bid shall be in English.

7. Pre-bid meeting

The bidder or his official representative is invited to attend a pre-bid meeting which will take place at the address, venue, time and date as indicated in appendix.

The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.

The bidder is requested to submit any questions in writing or by fax or through E-mail to reach BUIDCo not later than one week before the meeting.

Minutes of the meeting, including the text of the questions raised (without identifying the source of enquiry) and the responses given will be transmitted without delay to all purchasers of the bidding documents. Any modification of the bidding documents listed in Sub-Clause 8.1 which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by BUIDCo exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause 10 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting. All bidders have to collect any addendum on next working day of pre-bid meeting. The bidder shall receive the minutes of the meeting on the next working day of the pre-bid meeting.

Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

8. Amendment of Bidding Documents

Before the deadline for submission of bids, BUIDCo may modify the bidding documents by issuing addendum.

Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents and shall be collected by all the purchasers of the bidding documents. Prospective bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing or by Letter/Fax/Email to BUIDCo. BUIDCo will assume no responsibility for postal delays.

9. Eligibility Criteria

- a) The firm should have an average annual turnover not less than the amount equal to the estimated cost i.e. 72.00 lakh of the similar projects during last three years and in the support of this the firm should submit the audited report of last three years.
- b) The firm should have Executed/Completed at least one similar park project.
- c) Same as NIT of para 2 (ii).

10. Detailed Drawings and Instructions

The Corporation shall furnish with reasonable promptness additional instruction by means of drawings or otherwise necessary for proper execution of the work. All such drawings and instructions shall be consistent with contract documents.

The work shall be executed in conformity therewith and the contractor shall not work without proper drawings and instructions.

Immediately after receipt of the work order of the contract, the contractor shall prepare a progress schedule and submit the same to the Corporation for approval which shall indicate the dates for the starting and completion of the various stages of constructions.

11. Copies Furnished

The selected Firms on the signing hereof of the contract shall be furnished by the Corporation free of charge with a copy of the priced schedule of quantities/rates, two copies of each of the said drawings and one copy of specification and two copies of all further drawings issued during the progress of the work.

12. Ownership of Drawing

All drawings, specification and copies thereof furnished by the Corporation are the property of the Corporation. They are not to be used for other works, and with the exception of the signed contract set, are to be returned to the Corporation on request on completion of the work.

13. Failure By applicant Firms to Comply with Corporation's Instruction

If the selected Firms after receipt of written notice from the Corporation requiring compliance of any instructions within fifteen days fails to comply with such instructions, the Corporation, may employ other person, to carry out any such instructions whatsoever that may be necessary to give effect thereto and pay all cost in connection therewith. The contractor shall either pay the Corporation the cost incurred by the Corporation due or to become due to the contractor.

14. Selected Firms Shall Visit the Site

Intending selected Firms shall visit the site and make himself thoroughly acquainted with the local site condition, nature and requirements of the work, facilities of transport condition, availability of labour and materials, access and storage of materials and removal of rubbish. The tenderer shall provide in the tender for cost of carriage, freight and other charges as also for any special difficulties and including police restriction for transport etc. for proper execution of work as indicated in the drawings. The successful tenderer will not be entitled to any claim or compensation for difficulties faced or losses incurred on account of any site condition which existed before the commencement of the work or which in the opinion of the Corporation, might be deemed to have reasonably been inferred as so existing before commencement of work.

15. Tenders

The entire tender paper issued to the tenderer/ selected Firms should be submitted fully priced and also signed on the last page together with initials on every page. Initial/Signature will indicate the acceptance of the tender papers by the tenderer.

The schedule of quantities shall be filled in as follows:

- i. The "Rate" column to be legibly filled in ink in both English figures and English words.
- ii. Amount column to be legibly filled in for each item and the amount for each subhead as detailed in the "Schedule of Quantities".
- iii. All corrections / over writings are to be initialed with the seal of the Firm.
- iv. The "Rate Column" for alternative items shall only be filled up.
- v. The "Amount" column for alternative items of which the quantities are not mentioned shall not be filled up.
- vi. In case of any errors / omissions in the quoted rates between the "Original" & "Duplicate" copies, the rates given in the tender marked.

No modifications, writing or corrections in schedule of work shall be made in the tender by the tenderer.

The Corporation reserves the right to reject the lowest or any tender and also to discharge any or all the tenders for each section or to split up and distribute any item of work to any firm or firms, without assigning any reason.

The tenderer should note that the tender is strictly on the percentage basis and their attention is drawn to the fact that the rates for each and every item should be correct, workable and self-supporting. If called upon by the Corporation, detailed analysis of any or all the rates shall be submitted.

The Corporation shall not be bound to accept the contractor's rate analysis.

The work will be paid for as 'measured work' on the basis of actual work done and not as "lump sum" contract. All items of work described in the schedule of quantities are to be deemed and paid as complete work in all respects and details including preparatory and finishing work involved, directly related to and reasonably detectable from the drawings, specifications and schedule of quantities and no further extra charges will be allowed in this connection.

The Corporation has power to add to omit from any work as shown in drawings or described in specifications or included in schedule of quantities and intimate the same in writing but no addition, omission or variation shall be made by the contractor without authorization from the Corporation. No variation shall vitiate the contract.

The tenderer shall note that his tender shall remain valid for consideration for a period of 3 (three) months from the date of submission of tender.

16. Agreement

The successful tenderer shall sign the agreement as per draft agreement immediately after issue of formal work order and he shall pay for all stamps and legal expenses, incidental thereto. However, the written acceptance of the tender by the Corporation/ Architect/ Consultant will constitute a binding contract between the Corporation and the person so tendering whether such formal agreement is or is not subsequently executed.

17. Permits and Licenses

Permits and licenses for release of materials which are under Government control shall be arranged by the contractor on behalf of the Corporation. The Corporation will sign any form or application that may be necessary for the purpose.

It may be clearly understood that no compensation or additional charges can be claimed by the contractor for non receipt of any such controlled material in due time.

The contractor will, however be eligible to a proportionate extension of time on this account which in the opinion of the Corporation is reasonable. The contractor shall at his own cost arrange for storage shed adequate for taking delivery and storing of the materials including any incidental costs for obtaining permits and licenses etc. The costs for storing, transporting, handling etc. are to be included by the contractor in his quoted rate.

18. Government and Local Rules

The contractor shall conform to the provisions of all local By laws and Acts relating to the work and to Regulations etc. of the Government and Local Authorities and of any Corporation with whose system the premises is proposed to be connected. The contractor shall give all notices required by the said Act, Rules, Regulations, and By laws etc and pay all fees payable to such authority/authorities for execution of the work involved. The cost, if any shall be deemed to have been included in his quoted rates, taking into account all liabilities for licenses, fees for footpath encroachment and restorations etc, if any, and shall

defend all actions from such claims or liabilities.

19. Taxes and Duties

The tenderers must include in their tender prices quoted for all duties, royalties, cess, excise, sales tax, work contract taxes, or local charges as applicable. No extra claim on this account will in any case be entertained.

20. Provisional Sums (P.S.)

All provisional sums described in the schedule of quantities as P.S. shall be exclusively allotted to the purchase of materials and not for any handling/fixing to be done by the contractor. Such costs of handling and fixing with profit (including transport charge if required) shall be separately included in the contract price as described in the schedule of quantities. The disposal of the amount covered under this head will be absolutely at the discretion or order issued by the Corporation and realize the payment from the Corporation thus made through his bills for work done.

21. Quantity of Work to be Executed

The quantities shown in the Schedule of quantities are intended to cover the entire new structure indicated in the drawing but the Corporation reserves the right to execute only a part or the whole or any excess thereof without assigning any reason therefore. If at any time after the commencement of the work, the Corporation shall for any reason whatever not require the whole work thereof as specified in the tender to be carried out the Corporation shall give notice in writing of the fact to the contractor who shall have no claim to any payment as compensation whatsoever on account of any profit or advantage which he might have derived from the execution of the work in full, but which he did not derive in consequence of the full amount of the work not having been carried out; neither shall he have any claim for compensation by reason of any alterations have been made in the original specification, drawing, designs and instructions which involve any curtailment of the work as originally contemplated.

22. Other Persons Engaged by the Corporation

The Corporation reserves the right to execute any part of the work included in this contract or any work which is not included in this contract by other Agency or persons and the contractor shall allow all reasonable facilities, and use of any scaffolding etc. for the execution of such work. All the agencies engaged by the Corporation on the work shall act in close coordination extend mutual assistance to enable completion of the work satisfactorily.

23. Earnest Money and Security Deposit / Retention Money

The tenderer will have to deposit an amount of (As Mentioned in NIT) in the form of Bank

Guarantee of any Nationalized Bank/Scheduled Bank at the time of submission of tender as an Earnest Money. The Earnest Money of the unsuccessful tenders will be refunded without any interest, soon after the expiry of the validity period of the tender or an award of the contract to the successful tenderer, whichever is earlier.

The successful tenderer to whom the contract is awarded will have to deposit as "Initial Security Deposit" (ISD), amounting to 2% of the value of the accepted tender including the Earnest Money, Initial Security Deposit may be submitted in the form of Bank Guarantees of any Nationalised Bank/ Scheduled Bank in a format approved by the Corporation. The Initial Security Deposit will have to be made immediately after acceptance of the tender failing which the Corporation at its discretion revoke the Letter of Acceptance and forfeit the Earnest Money Deposit, furnished along with the tender.

Apart from the Initial Security Deposit made as above, retention money shall be deducted from progressive running bills to make the total security deposit as per terms of the tender @ 8% of the gross value of each running bill.

The retention money will not be deducted if adequate Bank Guarantee on a Nationalised Bank is submitted by the contractor.

50% of the total security deposit will be refunded to the contractor subject to issue of virtual completion certificate by the Corporation and the contractor removing his materials, equipments, labour force, temporary shed/stores etc. from the site.

The balance 50% will be refunded to the contractor 30 days after end of "Defect Liability Period" provided he has satisfactorily carried out the entire work, submitted all documents contractually called for and attended to all defects during defect liability period in accordance with the conditions of contract. No interest is allowed on retention money and earnest money deposit.

Further, if some dues to the Corporation from the contractor(s) have still to be recovered, the Corporation reserves the right to withhold payment of so much of the retention money as in his opinion, represents the cost of the same.

24. Contractor to Provide Everything Necessary

The contractor shall provide everything necessary for the proper execution of the work according to the intent and meaning of the drawing, schedule of quantities and specifications taken together whether the same may or may not be particularly shown or described therein provided that the same can reasonably be inferred there from and if the contractor finds any discrepancies therein he shall immediately and in writing refer the same to the Corporation whose decision shall be final and binding. The contractor shall provide himself for ground and fresh water for carrying out the work at his own cost. The Corporation shall on no account be responsible for the expenses incurred by the contractor for hired ground or fresh water obtained from elsewhere.

The rates quoted against individual items will be inclusive of everything necessary to complete the said items of work within the contemplation of the contract, and beyond the unit price no extra payment will be allowed for incidental or contingent work, labour and /

or materials inclusive of all taxes and duties whatsoever for specific items, if any stipulated in the tender documents.

The contractor shall supply, fix and maintain at his own cost for the execution of any work, all tools, tackles, machineries and equipments and all the necessary centering, watching and lighting by night as well as by day required not only for the proper execution and protection of the said work but also for the protection of the public and safety of any adjacent roads, street, walls, houses, buildings, all other erections, matters and things and the contractor shall take down and remove any or all such centering, scaffolding planking, timbering, strutting, shoring etc. on occasions as required or when ordered so to do and shall fully reinstate and make good all matters and things disturbed during the execution of work to the satisfaction of the Corporation.

The contractor shall at all times give access to workers engaged by the Corporation or any men engaged on the building and to provide such parties with proper, sufficient and if required, special scaffolding, hoists and ladders and provide them with water and lighting and leave or make any holes, grooves etc. in any work, where directed by the Corporation as may be required to enable such workman to lay or fix pipes, electrical wiring, special fittings etc. The quoted rate of the tenderer shall accordingly include all these above mentioned contingent work.

25. Time and Extension for Delay

The time allowed for execution of the Works as specified in the Schedule 'F' or the extended time in accordance with these conditions shall be the essence of the Contract. The execution of the works shall commence from such time period as mentioned in letter of acceptance or from the date of handing over of the site whichever is later. If the Contractor commits default in commencing the execution of the work as aforesaid, Government shall without prejudice to any other right or remedy available in law, be at liberty to forfeit the security deposit absolutely.

As soon as possible after the contract is concluded the Contractor shall submit a Time & Progress Chart for each milestone and get it approved by the Department. The Chart shall be prepared in direct relation to the time stated in the Contract documents for completion of items of the work. It shall indicate the forecast of the dates of commencement and completion of various trades or sections of the work and may be amended as necessary by agreement between the Engineer-in-Charge and Contractor within the limitations of time imposed in the contract documents, and further to ensure good progress during the execution of the work, the contractor shall in all cases in which the time allowed for any work, exceeds one month complete the work.

If the work(s) be delayed by

- i) Force majeure, or
- ii) Serious loss or damage by fire, or
- iii) Civil commotion, local.

- iv) Delay on the part of other contractors or tradesmen engaged by Engineer-in-Charge in executing work not forming part of the Contract, or
- v) Non-availability of stores, which are the responsibility of Government to supply or
- vii) Non-availability or break down of tools and Plant to be supplied or supplied by Government or

then upon the happening of any such event causing delay, the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge but shall nevertheless use constantly his best endeavors to prevent or make good the delay and shall do all that may be reasonably required to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge to proceed with the works.

Request for the rescheduling of Milestones and extension of time, to be eligible for consideration, shall be made by the contractor in writing within fourteen days of the happening of the hindering event causing delay on the prescribed form. The Contractor may also, if practicable, indicate in such a request the period for which extension is desired.

In any such case the competent authority may give a fair and reasonable extension of time and reschedule the milestones for completion of work. Such extension shall be communicated to the Contractor by the Engineer-in-Charge in writing, within 3 months of the date of receipt of such request. Non application by the contractor for extension of time shall not be a bar for giving a fair and reasonable extension by the Engineer-in-Charge and this shall be binding on the contractor.

The basic centerlines, reference points and benchmarks will be fixed by the department. The contractor shall established at his own cost at suitable points, additional reference lines and bench marks as may be necessary and instructed by the engineer-in-charge. The contractor shall remain responsible for the sufficiency and accuracy of all the bench marks and reference lines.

26. Liquidated Damages

Should the work be not completed to the satisfaction of the Corporation within the stipulated period, the contractor shall be bound to pay to the Corporation a sum calculated @0.5% of the accepted contract sum per week of delay by way of liquidated damages and not as penalty during the work remains uncommenced or unfinished after the expiry of the completion date.

I. Action When Whole of Security Deposit is Forfeited

In any case in which under any clause or clauses of this contract, the contractor shall have rendered himself liable to pay liquidated damages amounting to the whole of his security deposit (whether paid in one sum or deducted by installments) to Corporation shall have power to adopt any of the following courses as they may deem best suited to the interest of the Corporation:

a) To rescind the contract (of which rescission notice in writing to the Contractor under

hand of the Corporation shall be conclusive evidence) and in which case the security deposit of the contractor shall stand forfeited and be absolutely at the disposal of the Corporation.

- b) To employ labour paid by the Corporation and supply materials to carry out the work, or any part of the work, debiting the contractor with the cost of the labour and price of material (of the amount of which cost and price of a certificate of the shall be final and conclusive against the contractor) and crediting him with the value of the work done, in all respects in the same manner and at the same rates as if had been carried out by the contractor under the terms of this contract. The certificate of the Corporation as to the value of the work done shall be final and conclusive against the contractor.
- c) To measure the work of the contractor and to take such part thereof as shall be unexecuted, out of his hands, and to give it to another contractor to complete in which case any expenses which may be incurred in excess of the sum which would have been paid to the original contractor, if the whole work had been executed by him (of the amount of which excess the certificates in writing of the Corporation shall be final and conclusive) shall be binding and paid by the original contractor and may be deducted from any money due to him by the Corporation under the contract or otherwise or from his security deposit or the proceeds of sale thereof, or a sufficient part thereof.
- d) In the event of any of the above courses being adopted by the Corporation the contractor shall have no claim to compensation for any loss sustained by him by reasons of his having purchased or procured any materials or entered into any execution of this work or the performance of the contract. And in any case the contract shall be rescinded under the provision aforesaid, the contractor shall not be entitled to recover or be paid any sum for any work thereto actually performed under this contract, unless and until the Corporation will have certified in writing the performance of such work and the value payable in respect thereof, and he shall only be entitled to be paid the value so certified.

ii. Tools, Storage of Materials, Protective Works and Site Office Requirements

The contractor shall provide, fix up and maintain in an approved position proper office accommodation for contractor's representative and staff, which offices shall be open at all reasonable hours to receive instruction, notices or communications and clear away on completion of the work and make good all work disturbed.

All drawing maintained on the site are to be carefully mounted on boards of appropriate size. They are to be protected from ravages of termites, ants and other insects.

Protective Measures

The contractor from the time of being placed in possession of the site must make suitable arrangements for watching, lighting and protecting the work, the site and surrounding

properly by day, by night, on Sundays and other holidays.

The contractor shall indemnify the Corporation against any possible damage to the building, roads or member of the public in course of execution of work.

The contractor shall provide necessary temporary enclosures, gates, entrances etc. for the protection of the work and materials and for altering and adopting the same as may be required and removing on completion of the work and making good all work disturbed.

Storage of Materials

The contractor shall provide and maintain proper sheds for the proper storage and adequate protection of the materials etc. and other work that may be executed on the site including the tools and materials of subcontractors and remove the same on completion.

Tools

All tools, equipments and instruments as instructed by the Corporation and considered necessary for the work shall be provided by the contractor for the due performance of this contract.

iii. Notice And Patents of Appropriate Authority and Owner

The contractor shall confirm to the provisions of any Acts of the Legislature relating to the work and to the Regulations and Bylaws of any authorities, and/or any water, lighting and other companies, and/or authorities with whose system the structure were proposed to have connection and shall before making any variations from the drawings or specification that may be associated to so conform, give the Corporation written notices specifying the variations proposed to be made and the reasons for making them and apply for instructions thereon. The Corporation on receipt of such intimation shall give a decision within a reasonable time

The contractor shall arrange to give all notices required for by the said Acts, Regulations or Bylaws to be given to any authority and to pay to such authority or to any public officer all fees that may be properly chargeable in respect of the work and lodge the receipts with the Corporation.

The contractor shall indemnify the Corporation against all claims in respect of patent right, royalties, damages to buildings, roads or members of public in course of execution of work and shall defend all action arising from such claims and shall keep the Corporation saved harmless and indemnified in all respects from such actions, costs and expenses.

iv. Contractor Immediately to Remove all Offensive Matters

All soil, filth or other matters of any offensive nature taken out of any trench, sewer, drain, cesspool or other place shall not be deposited on the surface but shall at once be carted away by the contractor to a safe place as per rules of the appropriate authorities.

v. Access

Any authorized representative of the Corporation shall at all reasonable times have free access to the work and/or to the workshops, factories or other places where materials are being prepared or constructed for the work and also to any place where the materials are lying or from where they are being obtained, and the contractor shall give every facility to the Corporation or their representatives necessary for inspection and examination and test of the material and workmanship. Except the representatives of the Corporation no person shall be allowed at any time without the written permission of the Corporation.

vi. Materials, Workmanship, Samples, Testing of Materials

All the work specified and provided for in the specification or which may be required to be done in order to perform and complete any part thereof shall be executed in the best and most workman like manner with materials of the best and approved quality of the respective kinds in accordance with the particulars contained in and implied by the specifications and as represented by the drawings or according to such other additional particulars and instructions as may from time to time be given by the Corporation during the execution of the work, and to his entire satisfaction.

If required by the Corporation, the Contractor shall have to carry out tests on materials and workmanship in approved materials testing laboratories or as prescribed by the Corporation at his own cost to prove that the materials etc. under test conform to the relevant I.S. standards or as specified in the specification. No extra payment on this account should in any case be entertained.

All the materials, stores & equipments required for full performance of the work under the contract must be provided through normal channels and must include charge for sales tax, import duties and other charges as applicable and must be best of their kind available and the contractor must be entirely responsible for the proper and efficient carrying out of the work. The work must be done in the best workmanship manner. Samples of all materials to be used shall be submitted to the Corporation and written approval from the Corporation shall be obtained prior to placement of order. A list of materials of approved make and brand is annexed. Materials mentioned in the said list shall be used, In case materials in the list are not available the contractor may use the equivalent product with prior permission from the Corporation. As regards equivalent product/ material the opinion of the Corporation shall be final and binding on the contractor.

During the inclement weather the contractor shall suspend concreting and plastering for such time as the Corporation may direct and shall protect from injury all work during its course of execution. Any damage (during construction) to any part of the work for any reasons due to rain, storm or neglect of contractor, shall be rectified by the contractor in an approved manner at no extra cost.

Should the work be suspended by reason of rain, strike. Lockouts or any other cause, the contractor shall take all precaution necessary for the protection of work and at his own expenses shall make good any damage from any of these causes.

The contractor shall cover up and protect from damage, ,from any cause, all new work and supply all temporary doors, protection to windows, and any other requisite protection for the

execution of the work whether by himself or special tradesman or subcontractor and any damage caused must be made good by the contractor at his own expenses.

vii. Removal of Improper Work

The Corporation shall during the progress of the work have power to order in writing from time to time the removal from the work within such reasonable time or times as may be specified in the order of any materials which in the opinion of the Corporation are not accordance with specification or instruction, the substitution or proper re-execution of any work executed with materials or workmanship not in accordance with the drawings and specifications or instruction. In case the contractor refuses to comply with the order the Corporation shall have the power to employ and pay other agencies to carry out the work and all expenses consequent thereon or incidental thereto as certified by the Corporation shall be borne by the contractor or may be deducted from any money due to or that may become due to the contractor. No certificate which may be given by the Corporation shall relieve the Contractor from his liability in respect of unsound work or bad materials.

27. Site Engineer

The term "Site Engineer" shall mean the person, if any, appointed by the Corporation to superintendent the work. The Contractor shall afford the Site Engineer every facility and assistance for examining the work and materials and for checking and measuring work and materials. The Site Engineer shall have no power to revoke, alter, enlarge or relax any requirements of the contract or to sanction any day work, addition, alterations, deviations or omission or any extra work whatever, except in so far as such authority may be specially conferred by a written order of the Corporation.

28. Labour Laws to be complied by the Contractor

The contractor shall obtain a valid license under the State Labour Act, and the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central rules 1971, before the commencement of the work, and continue to have a valid license until the completion of the work. The contractor shall also abide by the provisions of the Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) ACt, 1986.

The contractor shall also comply with the provisions of the building and other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment & Conditions of Service) ACt, 1996 and the building and other Construction Workers Welfare Cess Act, 1996.

Any failure to fulfill these requirements shall attract the penal provisions of the contract arising out of the resultant non-execution of the work.

No labour below the prescribed age shall be employed on the work.

29. Payment of Wages

Payment of wages:

- i) The contractor shall pay to labour employed by him either directly or through sub-contractors, wages not less than fair wages as defined in P.W.D. Contractor's Labour Regulations or as per the provisions of the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970 and the contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Central Rules, 1971, wherever applicable.
- ii) The contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of any contract to the contrary, cause to be paid fair wage to labour indirectly engaged on the work including any labour engaged by his sub-contractors in connection with the said work, as if the labour had been immediately employed by him.
- iii) In respect of all labour directly or indirectly employed in the works for performance of the contractor's part of this contract, the contractor shall comply with or cause to be complied with the Public Works Department contractor's Labour Regulations made by Government from time to time in regard to payment of wages, wage period, deductions from wages recovery of wages not paid and deductions unauthorisedly made, maintenance of wage books or wage slips, publication of scale of wages and other terms of employment, inspection and submission of periodical returns and all other matters of the like nature or as per the provisions of the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970, and the Contract Labour (Regulation And Abolition) Central Rules, 1971, wherever applicable.
- iv) a) The Engineer-in-Charge concerned shall have the right to deduct from the moneys due to the contractor any sum required or estimated to be required for making good the loss suffered by a worker or workers by reason of non fulfillment of the conditions of the contract for the benefit of the workers, non-payment of wages or of deductions made from his or their wages which are not justified by their terms of the contract or non-observance of the Regulations.
 - b) Under the provision of Minimum Wages (Central) Rules 1950, the contractor is bound to allow to the labours directly or indirectly employed in the works one day rest for 6 days continuous work and pay wages at same rate as for duty. In the event of default the Engineer-in-Charge shall have the right to deduct the sum or sums not paid on account of wages for weekly holidays to any labours and pay the same to the persons entitled thereto from any money due to the contractor by the Engineer-in-Charge concerned.
- v) The contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936, Minimum Wages Act, 1948, Employees Liability Act, 1938, Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, Maternity Act, 1970, or the modifications thereof or any other laws relating thereto and the rules made hereunder from time to time.

- vi) The contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified BUIDCo against payments to be made under and for the observance of the laws aforesaid and the P.W.D. Contractor's Labour Regulations without prejudice to his right to claim indemnity from his sub-contractors.
- vii) The laws aforesaid shall be deemed to be a part of this contract and any breach thereof shall be deemed to be a breach of this contract.
- viii) Whatever is the minimum wage for the time being, or if the wage payable higher than such wage, such wage shall be paid by the contractor to the workmen directly without the intervention of Jamadar and that Jamadar shall not be entitled to deduct or recover any amount from the minimum wage payable to the workmen as and by way of commission or otherwise.
- ix) The contractor shall ensure that no amount by way of commission or otherwise is deducted or recovered by the Jamadar from the wage of workmen.

In respect of all labour directly or indirectly employed in the work for the performance of the contractor's part of this contract, the contractor shall at his own expense arrange for the safety provisions as per P.W.D. Safety Code framed from time to time and shall at his own expense provide for all facilities in connection therewith. In case the contractor fails to make arrangement and provide necessary facilities as aforesaid he shall be liable to pay a penalty of Rs. 200/- for each default and in addition the Engineer-in-Charge shall be at liberty to make arrangement and provide facilities as aforesaid and recover the costs incurred in that behalf from the contractor

30. Minimum wages Act to be complied with.

The contractor shall at least pay and comply with all the provisions of the Minimum wages Act s and rules framed there under other labour laws related to contract labour.

31. Work not to be sublet. Action in case of insolvency

The contract shall not be assigned or sublet without the written approval of the Engineer-in-Charge. And if the contractor shall assign or sublet his contract, or attempt to do so, or become insolvent or commence any insolvency proceedings or make any composition with his creditors or attempt to do so, or if any bribe, gratuity, gift, loan, perquisite, reward or advantage pecuniary or otherwise, shall either directly or indirectly, be given, promised or offered by the contractor, or any of his servants or agent to any public officer or person in the employment of BUIDCo in any way relating to his office or employment, or if any such officer or person shall become in any way directly or indirectly interested in the contract, the Engineer-in-Charge on behalf of the Governor of Bihar shall have power to adopt the courses specified in Clause 3 hereof in the interest of BUIDCo and in the event of such course being adopted the consequences specified in the said Clause 3 shall ensue.

32. Compensation

All sums payable by way of compensation under any of these conditions shall be considered as reasonable compensation to be applied to the use of BUIDCo without reference to the actual loss or damage sustained and whether or not any damage shall have been sustained.

33. Contractor's Employees

The Contractor shall employ technically qualified and competent supervisors for the work who shall be available (by turn) throughout the working hours to receive and comply with instruction of the Corporation. The Contractor shall engage at least one experienced Technical representative as Site-in-Charge for execution of the work. The Contractor shall employ in connection with the work persons having the appropriate skill or ability to perform their job efficiently.

The Contractor shall employ local labours on the work as far as possible.

No labour below the age of sixteen years and who is not an Indian National shall be employed on the work.

Any labour supplied by the Contractor to be engaged on the work on day work basis either wholly or partly under the direct order or control of the Corporation or its representative shall be deemed to be a person employed by the Contractor.

The selected firms shall comply with the provisions of all labour legislation including the requirements of:

- a. The Payment of Wages Act.
- b. Employer's Liability Act.
- c. Workman's Compensation Act.
- d. Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and Central Rules 1971.
- e. Apprentices Act 1961
- f. Any other Act or enactment relating thereto and rules framed there under from time to time

The Contractor shall keep the Corporation saved harmless and indemnified against claims of any of the workmen and all costs and expenses as may be incurred by the Corporation in connection with any claim that may be made by any workman are recoverable from the Contractor.

The Contractor shall comply at his cost with order of requirement of any Health Officer of the State or any local authority or of the Corporation regarding the maintenance of proper environmental sanitation of the areas where the Contractor's labour are housed or accommodated, for the prevention of smallpox, cholera, plague, typhoid, malaria and other

contagious diseases. The contractor shall provide, maintain and keep in good sanitary condition adequate sanitary accommodation and provide facilities for pure drinking water at all times for the use of men engaged on the work and shall remove and clear away the same on completion of work. Adequate precaution shall be taken by the Contractor to prevent nuisance of any kind on the work or on the land adjoining the same.

The Contractor shall arrange to provide first aid treatment to the labour engaged on the work. He shall within 24 hours of any accident at or about the site or in connection with execution of work, report such accident to the Corporation and also to the competent authority where such report is required by law.

34. Dismissal of Workmen

The Contractor shall on the request of the Corporation immediately dismiss from work any person employed thereon by him, who may in the opinion of the Corporation be unsuitable or incompetent or who may misconduct himself. Such discharge shall not be basis of any claim for compensation or damages against the Corporation or any of their officer/employee.

35. Assignment

The whole of the work included in the contract shall be executed by the Contractor and the Contractor shall not directly or indirectly transfer, assign or underlet any part, share or interest therein nor, shall take a new partner, without written consent of the Corporation and no subletting shall relieve the Contract from the full and entire responsibility of the contract or from active superintendence of the work during their progress.

36. Nominated Subcontractor

All specialists, Merchants, Tradesmen and others executing any work or supplying and fixing any goods for which prime cost prices or provisional sums are included in the Schedule of Quantities/Rates and/or specification who may be nominated or selected by the Corporation are hereby declared to be subcontractors employed by the contractor and are herein referred to as nominated subcontractors.

37. Damage to Persons and Property, Insurance etc.

The contractor shall be responsible for all injury to the work or workmen, to persons, animal or things and for all damages to the structural and/or decorative part of property which may arise from the operations or neglect of himself or of any sub-contractor or any of his or a subcontractors employees, whether such injury or damage arise from carelessness, accident or any of his or subcontractor's employees, or any other cause whatsoever in any way connected with the carrying out of this contract. The clause shall be held to include interalia, any damage to buildings whether immediately adjacent or otherwise and any damage to roads, streets, footpaths or ways as well as damage caused to the buildings and the work forming the subject of this contract by rain, wind or other inclemency of the weather. The Contractor shall indemnify the Corporation and harmless in respect of all and any expenses arising from any such injury or damages to persons or property as aforesaid and also in respect of any claim made in respect of injury or damage under any acts of compensation or

damage consequent upon such claim.

The Contractor shall reinstate all damages of every sort mentioned in this clause, so as to deliver the whole of the contract work complete and perfect in every respect and so as to make good or otherwise satisfy all claims for damages to the property or third parties.

38. Responsibility of Technical Staff and employees

Technical officers / staff deployed by the Contractor at any construction site will also be responsible for inferior quality / poor performance of any work and his name will be circulated to all works Sites of BUIDCo to debar from any other site, if his name is being proposed by other contractor.

39. Contractor's Risks

All risks of loss of or damage to physical property and of personal injury and death which arise during and in consequence of the performance of the Contract other than the excepted risks are the responsibility of the Contractor.

40. Levy/taxes payable by constructor

- i) Sales Tax or any other tax on materials in respect of this contract shall be payable by the contractor according to law in effect.
- ii) The contractor shall deposit royalty and obtain necessary permit for supply of the red earth, moorum, sand chips bajri, stone, kankar, etc. from local authorities.
- iii) If pursuant to or under any law, notification or order any royalty, cess or the hike becomes payable to the Government of India and does not at any time become payable by the contractor to the State Government/ Local authorities in respect of any material used by the contractor in the works then in such a case, it shall be lawful to the Government of India and it will have the right and be entitled to recover the amount paid in the circumstances as aforesaid from the dues of the contractor.

41. Insurance

Unless otherwise instructed the Contractor shall insure the work and keep them insured until the virtual completion of the contract against loss or damage by fire and/or earthquake, flood or damages from whatever cause by a Contractor's All Risk Insurance policy for the full value of the contract including Third Party Liability for a minimum value of 1% of the accepted tender value per occurrence subject to a minimum of Four (4) occurrences per year. The insurance must be placed with an approved Corporation, in the joint names of BUIDCo and the contractor for such amount and for any further sum if called upon to do so by the Corporation, the premium of such further sum being allowed to the Contractor as an authorized extra.

The Contractor shall deposit the policy and receipt for premium paid with the Corporation

within 30 days from the date of issue of work order unless otherwise instructed. In default of the Contractor insuring as provided above, the Corporation on his behalf may so insure and may deduct the premiums paid from any money due, or which may become due to the Contractor. The Contractor shall as soon as the claim under the policy is settled or the work reinstated by the Insurance Corporation should they select to do so proceed with due diligence with the completion of the work in the same manner as though the fire has not occurred and in all respects under the conditions of the contract. The Contractor in case of rebuilding or reinstatement after fire shall be entitled to extension of time for completion as the Corporation may deem fit.

The Contractor shall effect the Insurance necessary and indemnify the Corporation entirely from all responsibility in this respect. The Insurance must be placed with an approved Insurance Corporation and must be effected jointly in the name of the Contractor and BUIDCo and the policy lodged with the latter. The scope of Insurance is to include damage or loss to the contract itself till this is made over in complete state.

The Corporation shall be at liberty and hereby empowered to deduct the amount of any damages, compensations, costs, charges and expenses arising or occurring from or in respect of any such claim or damages from any sum due or to become due to the Contractor.

42. Account Receipts and Vouchers

The contractor shall upon the request of the Corporation furnish them with all the invoices, accounts, receipts and other vouchers that they require in connection with the work under this contract.

If the Contractor shall use materials less than what is required under the contract, the value of the difference in the quantity of the materials he was required to use and that he actually used shall be deducted from his dues. The decision of the Corporation shall be final and binding on the Contractor as to the amount of materials the Contractor is required to use for any work under this contract.

43. Measurement of Work

The Contractor will record and submit to the Corporation with the details of measurements for their scrutiny and signature. The Contractor should submit the bill with such endorsement of the Corporation.

On receipt of the bill, the Corporation shall intimate the Contractor that he requires the work to be measured, and the Contractor shall forthwith attend or send a qualified agent to assist the Corporation or the Corporation's representative in taking such measurements and calculations and to furnish all particulars or to give all assistance required by them.

The Contractor or his Agents may at the time of measurements take such notes and measurements as he may require. All authorized extra work, omissions and all variations made without the Corporation's knowledge, if subsequently sanctioned by him in writing with the approval of the Corporation shall be included in such measurements. The final measurement should be done within one month from the date of completion of work jointly by the Corporation and/or his representative and if the Contractor fails to comply, the

measurement taken by the Corporation shall be final and binding on the Contractor.

44. Action Where No Specification

In the case of any work for which there is no such specification in Technical Specification such work shall be carried out in accordance with the I.S. Specification and in the event of there being no I.S. Specification, then in such case the work shall be carried out in all respect in accordance with the instructions and requirements of the Corporation.

45. Contractor not to Deposit Materials in Manner that May Cause Inconvenience to the Public

The Contractor shall not deposit materials in locations, which will cause inconvenience to the public. The Corporation may require the Contractor to remove any materials, which are considered by him to be a danger or inconvenient to the public and cause them to be removed at the Contractor's cost.

46. Payments

All bills shall be prepared by the Contractor in the form prescribed by the Corporation, (format enclosed). Normally one interim bill shall be prepared each month subject to minimum value for interim for interim certificate as stated in these documents. The interim bill in proper form must be duly accompanied by detailed measurements, duly endorsed in support of quantities of work done and must show deduction for all previous payments, retention money, etc. Advance/adhoc payments for work will not be normally made. However, adhoc payments may be made at the discretion of the Corporation in case of exigency.

The Corporation shall issue certificate after due scrutiny of the Contractor's bill stating the amount due to the contractor from the Corporation and the Contractor shall be entitled to payment thereof, by the Corporation within the period of "honoring certificates" mentioned in these documents.

The amount stated in an interim certificate shall be based on the total value of work properly executed.

If the Corporation has supplied any materials or goods to the Contractor, the cost of any such materials or goods will be progressively deducted from the amount due to Contractor in accordance with the quantities consumed in the work.

All the interim payments shall be regarded as payments by way of advance against the final payment only and not as payments for work actually done and completed and shall not preclude the requiring of bad unsound and imperfect or unskilled work to be removed and taken away and reconstructed or re-erected or be considered as an admission of the due performance of the contract or any part thereof in any respect or the accruing of any claim, nor shall, it conclude determine or affect in any way the powers of the Corporation under these conditions or any of them as to the final settlement and adjustment of the accounts or otherwise or in any way vary or affect the contract. The final bill shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Corporation within one month of the date of certificate of completion

furnished by the Corporation and payment shall be made after the same is duly verified and certified by the Corporation.

47. Payment of Final Bill

The final bill shall be submitted by the contractor in the same manner as specified in interim bills within three months of physical completion of the work or within one month of the date of the final certificate of completion furnished by the Engineer-in-Charge whichever is earlier. No further claims shall be made by the contractor after submission of the final bill and these shall be deemed to have been waived and extinguished. Payments of those items of the bill in respect of which there is no dispute and of items in dispute, for quantities and rates as approved by Engineer-in-Charge, will, as far as possible be made within the period specified herein under, the period being reckoned from the date of receipt of the bill by the Engineer-in-Charge or his authorized Dy. Project Director, complete with account of materials issued by the Department and dismantled materials. The time period will be 2 months for the Tendered value of work is up to Rs. 1 crores.

48. Work to be Executed in Accordance with Specifications, Drawings, Orders etc.

The contractor shall execute the whole and every part of the work in the most substantial and workmanlike manner both as regards materials and otherwise in every respect in strict accordance with the specifications. The contractor shall also confirm exactly, fully and faithfully to the design, drawings and instructions in writing in respect of the work signed by the Engineer-in-Charge and the contractor shall be furnished free of charge one copy of the contract documents together with specification, designs, drawings and instruction .

The contractor shall comply with the provisions of the contract and with the care and diligence execute and maintain the works and provide all labour and materials, tools and plants including for measurements and supervision of all works, structural plans and other things of temporary or permanent nature required for such execution and maintenance in so far as the necessity for providing these, is specified or is reasonably inferred from the contract. The Contractor shall take full responsibility for adequacy, suitability and safety of all the works and methods of construction.

49. Approval of materials and supply equipments

The contractor shall, at his own expense, provide all materials, required for the works other than those, which are stipulated, to be supplied by the BUIDCo.

The contractor shall, at his own expense and without delay, supply to the Engineer-in-Charge samples of materials to be used on the work and shall get these approved in advance. All such materials to be provided by the Contractor shall be in conformity with the specifications laid down or referred to in the contract. The contractor shall, if requested by the Engineer-in-Charge furnish proof, to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge that the materials so comply. The Engineer-in-Charge shall within fifteen days of supply of samples or within such further period as he may require intimate to the Contractor in writing whether sample are approved by him or not. If samples are not

approved, the Contractor shall forthwith arrange to supply to the Engineer-in-Charge for his approval fresh samples complying with the specifications laid down in the contract. When materials are required to be tested in accordance with specifications, approval of the Engineer-in-Charge shall be issued after the test results are received.

The Contractor shall at his risk and cost submit the samples of materials to be tested or analysed and shall not make use of or incorporate in the work any materials represented by the samples until the required tests or analysis have been made and materials finally accepted by the Engineer-in-Charge. The Contractor shall not be eligible for any claim or compensation either arising out of any delay in the work or due to any corrective measures required to be taken on account of and as a result of testing of materials.

The contractor shall, at his risk and cost, make all arrangements and shall provide all facilities as the Engineer-in-Charge may require for collecting, and preparing the required number of samples for such tests at such time and to such place or places as may be directed by the Engineer-in-Charge and bear all charges and cost of testing unless specifically provided for otherwise elsewhere in the contract or specifications. The Engineer-in-Charge or his authorized representative shall at all time have access to the works and to all workshops and places where work is being prepared or from where materials, manufactured articles or machinery are being obtained for the works and the contractor shall afford every facility and every assistance in obtaining the right to such access.

The Engineer-in-Charge shall have full powers to require the removal from the premises of all materials which in his opinion are not in accordance with the specifications and in case of default the Engineer-in-Charge shall be at liberty to employ at the expense of the contractor, other persons to remove the same without being answerable or accountable for any loss for damage that may happen or arise to such materials. The Engineer-in-Charge shall also have full powers to require other proper materials to be substituted thereof and in case of default the Engineer-in-Charge may cause the same to be supplied and all costs which may attend such removal and substitution shall borne by the Contractor.

50. Variation / Deviation

The Contractor may when authorized and shall when directed in writing by the Corporation add and or omit or vary the work shown in the drawings or described in the specification or included in the priced schedule of quantities. The Contractor on his own accord shall make no addition, omission or variation without such authorization from the Corporation.

The price of all such additions/non tendered items will be worked out on the basis of rates quoted for similar items in the contract wherever existing or an engineering rate analysis based on prevalent fair price of labour materials at site of work including wastage and other components as required plus 15% for overhead and profit etc work contract sales Tax at prevailing rate will be payable extra over the stipulated OH/project percentage. The tender rates shall hold good for any increase or decrease in tender quantities.

No claim for an extra item/work shall be allowed unless it has been executed by the

authorization of the Corporation.

51. Substitution

Should the Contractor desire to substitute any materials and workmanship he/they must obtain the approval of the Corporation in writing for any such substitution well in advance. For materials designated in this specification by such term as "Equal" or "other approved" etc. specific approval of the Corporation shall be obtained in writing prior to execution.

52. Preparation of Building Work For Occupation & Use on Completion

The whole of the work will be thoroughly inspected by the Contractor and deficiencies/defects put right, all windows and doors cleaned including cleaning and oiling, if necessary of all hardware. All floors, staircases and every part of the building both inside & outside shall be left neat and clean as to ensure immediate occupation to the satisfaction of the Corporation.

On completion of above, the contractor shall inform the Corporation that he has completed the work and it is ready for inspection.

53. Cleaning Site on Completion

On completion of the work the Contractor shall clear and remove from the site all construction plant, surplus materials, rubbish and temporary work of every kind and leave the whole of the site and the work clean and in workmanlike condition to the satisfaction of the Corporation.

54. Contractor Liable for Damages, defects during maintenance period

If the contractor or his working people or servants shall break, deface, injure or destroy any part of building in which they may be working, or any building, road, road curb, fence, enclosure, water pipe, cables, drains, electric or telephone post or wired, trees, grass or grassland, or cultivated ground contiguous to the premises on which the work or any part is being executed, or if any damage shall happen to the work while in progress, from any cause whatever or if any defect, shrinkage or other faults appear in the work within defect liability period after a certificate final or otherwise of its completion shall have been given by the Engineer-in-Charge as aforesaid arising out of defect or improper materials or workmanship the contractor shall upon receipt of a notice in writing on that behalf make the same good at his own expense or in default the Engineer-in-Charge cause the same to be made good by other workmen and deduct the expense from any sums that may be due or at any time thereafter may become due to the contractor, or from his security deposit except for the portion pertaining to asphaltic work or the proceeds of sale thereof or of a sufficient option thereof. The security deposit of the contractor shall not be refunded before the expiry of defected liability period after the issue of the certificate final or otherwise, of completion of work, or till the final bill has been prepared and passed whichever is later.

In case of Maintenance and Operation works of Electrical & Mechanical services, the security deposit deducted from contractors shall be refunded within one month from the

date of final payment or within one month from the date of completion of the maintenance contract which ever is earlier

55. Concealed Work

The Contractor shall give due notice to the Corporation whenever any work is to be buried in the earth, concrete or in the bodies of walls or otherwise become inaccessible later on, in order that the work may be inspected and correct dimensions taken before such burial. In default whereof, the same shall, at the option of the Corporation, be either opened up for measurements at the Contractor's expenses or no payments may be made for such materials. Should any differences or dispute arise after execution of any work as to measurements etc. or other matters which cannot be conveniently tested or checked the records of the Corporation shall be accepted as correct and binding on the Contractor.

56. Escalation

The rates quoted shall be firm throughout the tenure of the contract (including extension of time, if any granted) and will not be subject to any fluctuation due to increase in cost of materials, labour, taxes, etc. unless specifically provided for in this document.

57. Idle Labour

Whatever the reasons may be, no claim for idle labour, additional establishment cost, hire and labour charges of tools and plants would be entertained under any circumstances.

58. Suspension of Work

The contractor shall, on receipt of the order in writing of the Engineer-in-Charge (whose decision shall be final and binding on the contractor) suspend the progress of the works or any part thereof for such time and in such manner as the Engineer-in-Charge may consider necessary so as not to cause any damage or injury to the work already done or endanger the safety thereof, for any of the following reasons:

- a) On account of any default on the part of the contractor or;
- b) For proper execution of the works or part thereof for reasons other than the default of the contractor; or
- c) For safety of the works or part thereof.

The contractor shall, during such suspension, properly protect and secure the works to the extent necessary and carry out the instructions given in that behalf by the Engineer-in-Charge.

If the suspension is ordered for reasons (b) and (c) of above, the contractor shall be entitled to an extension of time equal to the period of every such suspension PLUS 25%, for completion of the item or group of items of work for which a separate period of completion is specified in the contract and of which the suspended work forms a part, and;

59. Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment

The Contractor shall, throughout the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein:

- (a) have full regard for the safety of all persons entitled to be upon the Site and keep the Site (so far as the same is under his control) and the Works (so far as the same are not completed or occupied by BUIDCo) in an orderly state appropriate to the avoidance of danger to such persons,
- (b) Provide and maintain at his own cost all lights, guards, fencing, warning signs and watchmen and where necessary or required by the Engineer or by any duly constituted authority, for the protection of the Works or for the safety and convenience of the public or others, and
- (c) take all reasonable steps to protect the environment on and off the Site and to avoid damage or nuisance to persons or to property of the public or others resulting from pollution, noise or other causes arising as a consequence of his methods of operation.

60. Performance Guarantee

The contractor shall submit an irrevocable Performance Guarantee of 2% (Two percent) of the tendered amount including earnest money in the shape as mentioned in the Bihar Financial Rules or Bank Guarantee or any other deposits mentioned for his proper performance of the contract agreement, (not withstanding and/or without prejudice to any other provisions in the contract) from the date of issue of letter—of acceptance. This period can be further extended by the Engineer-in-Charge up to a maximum period on written request of the contractor stating the reason for delays in procuring the Bank Guarantee, to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge. This guarantee shall be in the form Bank Gurantee and D.D. of any Scheduled/Nationalized Bank.

- (ii) The performance Guarantee shall be initially valid up to 28 days beyond the defect liability.
- (iii) The Engineer-in-Charge shall not make a claim under the Performance guarantee except for amounts to which the Governor of Bihar is entitled under the contract (notwithstanding and/or without prejudice to any other provisions in the contract agreement) in the event of:
 - (a) Failure by the contractor to extend the validity of the Performance Guarantee as described herein above, in which event the Engineer-in-Charge may claim the full amount of the Performance guarantee.
 - (b) Failure by the contractor to pay Governor of Bihar any amount due, either as agreed by the contractor or determined under any of the Clauses/Conditions

- of the agreement, within 30 days of the service of notice to this effect by Engineer-in-Charge.
- (c) Failure by the contractor to rectify any defects as defined in the defect liability clause of contract data to the satisfaction of the Engineer incharge.
- (iv) In the event of the contract being determined or rescinded under provisions of any of the clause/condition of the agreement, the performance guarantee shall stand forfeited in full and shall be absolutely at the disposal of the Governor of Bihar.

61. Recovery of Security Deposit

The person/persons whose tender(s) may be accepted (hereinafter called the contractor) shall permit Government at the time of making any payment to him for work done under the contract to deduct a sum at 8 % (eight percent) from the gross amount of each running bill till full amount of security deposit 10% (ten percent) of agreement value or value of work (whichever is higher) is reached. If value of work exceeds the agreement value, security deposit (10%) will be recovered for the exceeded work.

All compensations or the other sums of money payable by the contractor under the terms of this contract may be deducted from, or paid by the sale of a sufficient part of his security deposit or from the interest arising there from, or from any sums which may be due to or may become due to the contractor by Government on any account whatsoever and in the event of his Security Deposit being reduced by reason of any such deductions or sale as aforesaid, the contractor shall within 10 days make good in cash or fixed deposit receipt tendered by the State Bank of India or by Nationalized Bank or by Scheduled Banks or Government Securities (if deposited for more than 12 months) endorsed in favour of the Engineer-in-Charge, any sum or sums which may have been deducted from, or raised by sale of his security deposit or any part thereof. The security deposit shall be collected from the running bills of the contractor at the rates mentioned above and the earnest money at the time of tenders will be treated a part of the Security Deposit.

62. Time and Extension for Delay

The time allowed for execution of the Works or the extended time in accordance with these conditions shall be the essence of the Contract. The execution of the works shall commence from such time period as mentioned in letter of acceptance or from the date of handing over of the site whichever is later. If the Contractor commits default in commencing the execution of the work as aforesaid, Government shall without prejudice to any other right or remedy available in law, be at liberty to forfeit the security deposit absolutely.

As soon as possible after the contract is concluded the Contractor shall submit a Time & Progress Chart for each milestone and get it approved by the Department. The Chart shall be prepared in direct relation to the time stated in the Contract documents for

completion of items of the work. It shall indicate the forecast of the dates of commencement and completion of various trades or sections of the work and may be amended as necessary by agreement between the Engineer-in-Charge and Contractor within the limitations of time imposed in the contract documents, and further to ensure good progress during the execution of the work, the contractor shall in all cases in which the time allowed for any work, exceeds one month (save for special jobs for which a separate Programme has been agreed upon) complete the work.

- 2 If the work(s) be delayed by.
 - i) Force majeure, or
 - ii) Serious loss or damage by fire, or
 - iii) Civil commotion, local.
 - iv) Delay on the part of other contractors or tradesmen engaged by Engineer-in-Charge in executing work not forming part of the Contract, or
 - v) Non-availability of stores, which are the responsibility of Government to supply or
 - vii) Non-availability or break down of tools and Plant to be supplied or supplied by Government or
 - vii) any other cause which is beyond the Contractor's control.

then upon the happening of any such event causing delay, the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge but shall nevertheless use constantly his best endeavors to prevent or make good the delay and shall do all that may be reasonably required to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge to proceed with the works.

- Request for the rescheduling of Milestones and extension of time, to be eligible for consideration, shall be made by the contractor in writing within fourteen days of the happening of the hindering event causing delay on the prescribed form. The Contractor may also, if practicable, indicate in such a request the period for which extension is desired.
- In any such case the competent authority may give a fair and reasonable extension of time and reschedule the milestones for completion of work. Such extension shall be communicated to the Contractor by the Engineer-in-Charge in writing, within 3 months of the date of receipt of such request. Non application by the contractor for extension of time shall not be a bar for giving a fair and reasonable extension by the Engineer-in-Charge and this shall be binding on the contractor.
- 5 The basic centerlines, reference points and benchmarks will be fixed by the department. The contractor shall established at his own cost at suitable points, additional reference lines and bench marks as may be necessary and instructed by the

engineer-in-charge. The contractor shall remain responsible for the sufficiency and accuracy of all the bench marks and reference lines.

63. Mobilization advance

Mobilization advance not exceeding 10% of the tendered value may be given, if requested by the contractor in writing within one month of the order to commence the work. In such a case the contractor shall execute a Bank Guarantee/ Bond from a Scheduled Nationalised Bank as specified by the Engineer-in-Charge for the full amount of such advance before it is released. Such advance shall be in two or more installments to be determined by the Engineer-In-charge at his absolute discretion. The first installment of such advance before shall be released by the Engineer-in-Charge to the contractor on a request made by the contractor to the Engineer-in-Charge in this behalf. The second and subsequent installment shall be released by the Engineer-in-Charge only after the contractor furnishes a proof of the satisfactory utilisation of the earlier installment to the entire satisfaction of the Engineer-In-Charge.

64. Approval of Engineer In charge

All works to be executed under the contract shall be executed under the direction and subject to the approval in all respects of the Engineer-in-Charge who shall be entitled to direct at what point or points and in what manner they are to be commenced, and from time to time carried on.

65. Cost of Samples

All samples shall be supplied by the Contractor at his own cost if the supply thereof is clearly intended by or provided for in the Contract.

66. Cost of Tests

The cost of making any test shall be borne by the Contractor if such test is:

- (a) clearly intended by or provided for in the Contract, or
- (b) particularised in the Contract (in case only of a test under load or of a test to ascertain whether the design of any finished or partially finished work is appropriate for the purposes which it was intended to fulfill) in sufficient detail to enable the Contractor to price or allow for the same in his Tender.

67. Recovery

Any amount found recoverable from the contractor shall be recovered as public demand under the Bihar Public Demand Act. without prejudice to any other mode of recovery.

68. Action where no Specifications are specified

In the case of any class of work for which there is no such specifications, such work shall be carried out in accordance with the Bureau of Indian Standards Specifications, Indian Road

Congress for road works and Indian Building Congress for building works or any central government agency. In case there are no such specifications in Bureau of Indian Standards, the work shall be carried out as per manufacturers specifications. If not available then as per Department Specifications. In case there are no such specifications as required above, the work shall be carried out in all respects in accordance with the instructions and requirements of the Engineer-in-Charge.

69. Commencement of Works

The contractor shall commence the Works as soon as is reasonably possible after the receipt by him of a notice to this effect from the Engineer, which notice shall be issued within the time stated in the Appendix to Tender after the date of the Letter of Acceptance. Thereafter, the Contractor shall proceed with the Works with due expedition and without delay.

70. Substational completion of parts

If any part of the Permanent Works has been substantially completed and has satisfactorily passed any Test on Completion prescribed by the Contract, the Engineer may issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of that part of the Permanent Works before completion of the Works and, upon the issue of such Certificate, the Contractor shall be deemed to have undertaken to complete with due expedition any outstanding work in that part of the Permanent Works during the Defects Liability Period.

71. Force Majeure

Neither party shall be liable to the other for any loss or damage occasioned by or arising out of acts of GOD such has Unprecedented flood, Volcanic eruption, Earthquake or other convulsion of nature and other acts such as general/ partial strikes by a section of government employees/ invasion, the act of foreign countries/ hostilities or war like operations before or after declaration of war, rebellion/ military or usurped power which prevent performance of the contract and which could not have been foreseen or avoided by a prudent person.

72. Termination of Contract by the Corporation

If the Contractor being a Corporation go into liquidation whether voluntary or compulsory or being a firm shall be dissolved or being an individual shall be adjudicated insolvent or shall make an assignment or a compensation for the benefit of the greater part, in number of amount of his creditors or shall enter into a Deed or arrangement with his creditors, the Official Assignee in insolvency, or the Receiver of the Contractor in insolvency, shall repudiate the contract the contract or if a Receiver of the Contractor's firm appointed by the court shall be unable, within fourteen days after notice to him requiring him to do so, to show to the reasonable satisfaction of the Corporation that he is able to carry out and fulfill the contract and if so required by the Corporation to give reasonable security there for, or if the Contractor shall suffer execution to be issued, or shall suffer any payment under this contract to be attached by or on behalf of and of the creditors of the contractor or shall assign, charge or encumber this contract or any payments due or which may become due to

the Contractor, there under, or shall neglect or fail to observe and perform all or any of the acts matters of things by this contract, to be observed and performed by the Contractor within three clear days after the notice shall have been given to the Contractor in manner hereinafter mentioned requiring the Contractor to observe and perform the same or shall improper materials or workmanship in carrying on the work, or shall in the opinion of the Corporation not exercised such due diligence and made such due progress as would enable the work to be completed within due time agreed upon and shall fail to fail to the satisfaction of the Corporation after three clear days notice requiring the Contractor to do so shall have been given to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, or shall abandon the contract, then and in any of the said cases, the Corporation may notwithstanding any previous waiver determine the contract by a notice in writing to the effect as hereinafter mentioned, but without thereby affecting the powers of the Corporation of the obligations and liabilities of the contract the whole of which shall continue in force as fully as if the contract had not been so determined and as if the work subsequently executed had been executed by or on behalf of the Contractor (without thereby creating any trust in favour of the contractor).

Further the Corporation or its agent or servant may enter upon and take possession of the work and all plants, tools, scaffolding, sheds, machinery, steam and other power, utensil and materials being lying upon premises or the adjoining lands or road and sell the same as his own property or may employ the same by means of his own servants and workmen in carrying on and completing the work or by engaging any other contractors or other person to complete, and the contractor shall not in any way interrupt or do any act, matter or thing to prevent or hinder such other contractors or other persons or person engaged from completing and finishing or using the materials and plants for the work. When the work shall be completed or as soon as thereafter as conveniently may be, the Corporation shall give notice in writing to the Contractor to remove his surplus materials and plants and should the Contractor fails to do so within a period of 14 days after receipt by him of the said notice, the Corporation may sell the same by Public Auction and shall give credit to the contractor for the amount so realised. Any expenses or losses by the Corporation in getting the work carried out by other contractors shall be adjusted against the amount payable to the contractor by way of selling his tools and plants or due on account of work carried out by the contractor prior to engaging other contractors or against the Security Deposit.

46. Arbitration

A. All disputes or differences of any kind whatsoever which shall at any time arise between the parties hereto touching or concerning the work or the execution or maintenance thereof of this contract or the rights touching or concerning the work or execution or maintenance thereof of this contract or the construction remaining operation or effect thereof or to the right or liabilities of the parties arising out of or in relation thereto whether during or after determination, force closure or breach of the contract (other than those in respect of which the decision of any person is by the contract expressed to be final and binding) shall after written notice by either party to the contract to the other of them and to the Appointing Authority who shall be appointee for this purpose by the Corporation be referred for adjudication to a sole Arbitrator to be appointed as hereinafter provided.

B. It is also a term of the contract that if the Contractor does not make any demand for arbitration in respect of any claim(s) within 90 days of receiving intimation from the Corporation that the bill after due verification is passed for payment of lesser amount, or he has accepted the payment as per clause 44 whichever is earlier or otherwise, the Contractor's rights under this agreement to refer to arbitration shall be deemed to have been forfeited and the Corporation shall be relieved and discharged of their liability under this Agreement in respect of such claims. Further, it is agreed that for the purpose of this clause such notice is deemed to have been received by the Contractor within 2 days of posting of the letter by the Corporation or when delivered by hand immediately after receipt thereof by the Contractor whichever is earlier. Further, a letter signed by the officials of the Corporation that the letter so posted to the Contractor shall be conclusive.

For the purpose of appointing the sole Arbitrator referred to above, the Appointing Authority will send within thirty days of receipt by him of the Written notice aforesaid to the Contractor a panel of three names of persons Who shall be presently unconnected with the organization for which the work is executed from the following categories of Arbitrators:

- i. Retired High Court/ Supreme Court Judges, who have experience in handling Arbitration cases.
- ii. Members of the Council of Arbitration.
- iii. Fellow of the Institute of Engineers, or Indian Institute of Architects.
- iv. Eminent retired Chief/Senior Engineers from State/Central P.W.D/Public Sector Undertakings of good reputation and integrity.

The contractor shall on receipt by him of the names as aforesaid select any one of the persons named to be appointed as a sole Arbitrator and communicate his name to the Appointing Authority within thirty days of receipt by him of the names. The Appointing Authority shall thereupon without any delay appoint the said person as the sole Arbitrator. If the Contractor fails to communicate such selection as provided above within the period specified, the Appointing Authority shall make the selection and appoint the selected person as the Sole Arbitrator

C. If the Appointing Authority fails to send to the Contractor, the panel of three names as aforesaid within the period specified, the Contractor shall send to the Appointing Authority a panel of three names of persons out of the above mentioned four categories of Arbitrators who shall all be unconnected with either party. The Appointing Authority shall on receipt by him of the names as aforesaid select any one of the persons named and appoint him as the sole Arbitrator within 30 days of receipt by him of the panel and inform the Contractor accordingly. If the Appointing Authority fails to communicate such selection within the period specified, the Contractor shall be entitled to appoint one of the persons as the sole Arbitrator and communicate his name to the Appointing Authority.

- D. If the Arbitrator so appointed is unable or unwilling to act or resigns his appointment or vacates his office due to any reason whatsoever, another sole Arbitrator shall be appointed as aforesaid.
- E. The work under the Contract shall however, continue during the arbitration proceedings and no payment due or payable to the Contractor shall be withheld on account of such proceedings.
- F. The Arbitrator shall be deemed to have entered into the reference on the date he issues notice to both the parties fixing the date of the first hearing.
- G. The Arbitrator may form time, with the consent of the parties, enlarge the time for making and publishing the award.
- H. The Arbitrator shall give a separate award in respect of each dispute or difference referred to him. The Arbitrator shall decide each dispute in accordance with the terms of the contract and give a reasoned award. The venue of arbitration shall be such place as may be fixed by the Arbitrator in his sole discretion.
- I. The fees, if any, of the Arbitrator, shall if required to be paid before the award is made and published, be paid half and half by each of the parties. The cost of the reference and of the award including the fees if any of the Arbitrator who may direct to and by whom and in what manner, such costs or any part thereof shall be paid and may fix or settle the amount of costs to be so paid.
- J. The award of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on both the parties.
- K. Subject to aforesaid, the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 or any statutory modifications or reenactment thereof and the rules made there under and for the time being in force, shall apply to the Arbitration proceeding under this clause.

SECTION 2 SPECIAL CONDITION OF CONTRACT

(Condition of Particular Application)

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

- 1. In the event of the tender being submitted by a firm it must be signed by each partner thereof and in the event of the absence of any partner shall be signed on his behalf by a person holding a power of attorney authorized by him to do so and which shall have to be produced on demand.
- 2. The tender shall contain the name, residence and place of business of person or persons filling the tender. All signatures shall be with date.
- 3. All page of tender documents, conditions and specification shall be initiated at the lower left hand corner and signed where ever required in the tender papers by tenderer or a person holding power of attorney authorizing him to sign on behalf of the firm before submission of the tender, cutting and overwriting must be signed in the above corner.
- 4. The tenderer shall be presumed to have carefully examined the condition of the contract. E.O.C and specification of work. He shall also be deemed to have inspected the site and to have satisfied himself independently as to the nature, extend and practicability of all works and access to the site available accommodation as regard to the land and building that may be required for temporary purposes in connection with the construction of the work. The successful tenderer will have to use their own machinery required for completion of the work.
- 5. No claim will be considered due to sudden fluctuation on rate of labour and materials or carriage in the market at any stage of the work till the completion.
- 6. The rates quoted by the contractor should be for finished work inclusive of royalty, Sales Tax, Income Tax and other Cess and State Taxes and carriage of all materials to site and all other incidental charges.
- 7. All labours are to be paid wages as per minimum wages Act.
- 8. The tenderer should acquaint itself with the nature of work and of materials involved in finished item of work and no claim will be entertained on these accounts.
- 9. No claim will be entertained for the extra item of work, if done by the contractor unless ordered in writing by the Engineer-in-charge.
- 10. The tenderer should quote his rate both in figures and words and they should arrive at total.
- 11. The contractor will provide labour huts, drinking water, Medical facilities etc. for labors working at his own cost and keep site clean at his own cost.
- 12. No claim for change in plan will be entertained.
- 13. The contractor will make arrangement for watch men and guards etc, at his own cost.

- 14. All materials to be supplied by the contractor for use in the work should be got approved in writing by Engineer-in-Charge prior to use in work. All rejected materials will have to be removed from the site after rejection otherwise it may be disposed off in any way BUIDCo likes and also recover the cost of removal from contractor.
- 15. All work should be got approved and passed by the Engineer In Charge in writing before these are filled up and finished as the case may be.
- 16. After completion of the work the contractor will remove all debris at his own cost and clean up and leave the site clean and tidy.
- 17. Contactor should maintain a site order book at his own cost at his site of work for noting directions concerning the work which will be the property of BUIDCo and will remain with BUIDCo Office.
- 18. Contractor will have to make his own arrangement to carry water at his own cost to the work site.
- 19. All facilities for checking of works and bill will be provided by the contractor and damages in process of checking will be made good by the contractor at his cost.
- 20. Contractor will be held responsible for any short of accident which may occur due to mismanagement by contractor and he will be liable to pay all damages for such accidents.
- 21. Prescribed unit in the B.O.Q. must not be altered in any case.
- 22. Standard P.W.D, P.H.E.D. and Electricity specification and relevant provision of latest ISI, specification shall apply in execution of work. ISI, specification shall apply in execution of work. The written approval from the BUIDCo shall be obtained prior to execution of above materials.
- 23. No claim will be entertained for idle labour for any reason.
- 24. All expenses in laying out building or road or any structures will have to be borne by the contractor. The layout will have to done in presence of Engineer in charge or his authorized representative.
- 25. Qualified Engineer or overseer to the satisfaction of the Project Director BUIDCo Patna will have to be employed by the contractor for supervision of the work and for day-to-day report at his own cos
- 26. BUIDCo will not be responsible for loss to the contractor caused by any of the followings:
 - (a) Natural calamities.
 - (b) Loss in transit.

- (c) Loss due to act of enemies.
- (d) Transport difficulties.
- (e) Circumstances beyond control of the Board.
- (f) Declaration of emergency due to any reasons.
- 27. The department reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of work at any stage of progress of work. No claim will be entertained on this score.
- 28. Tender should be accompanied with a statement giving the following particulars:
 - (a) Name of the tendering firm.
 - (b) Address.
 - (c) Status of the firm i.e. public limited or private limited corporation or registered firm.
 - (d) Whether the firm is a registered contractor of state P.W.D. if, so authority under which registered and class of registration.
 - (e) Value of important works done in recent years from a Govt. or organization or local body.
 - (f) The tenders are to be furnished with the following particulars.

DETAILS OF FIRM:

- (a) Amount of paid up Capital.
- (b) Date of registration of company.
- (c) Name of Directors.
- (d) Details of work of similar magnitude carried out.
- 29. Building under construction shall not be allowed to be owned or occupied by the contractor for keeping their labours etc. The contractor shall construct at his own cost, shed and hutments for staff and labours on their own.
- 30. The Defect Liability Period shall be of 12 months and shall be start from the actual date of satisfactory completion of the work. Defects pointed out during defect liability period shall be made good by the contractor at his own cost; failure to do the same, the necessary cost for making the good shall be recovered from the amount of security deposit.
- 31. Unless BUIDCo undertakes supply of building materials the constructor shall make his own arrangement for supply materials including cement and steel. The contractor

shall be responsible for all transportation and storage of the materials at site and shall bear all the related costs. The Engineer in charge shall be entitled at any time to inspect or examine all such materials and also to get the same tested. The contractor shall provide reasonable assistance for such inspection or examination and test as may be required. The cement arranged by the contractor must be of the brand such as L&T, Tata cement and A.C.C. confirming to I.S.5691976 or I.S. 4551976. Steel supplied by the contractor shall confirm to I.S. 17861979 and I.S.4321982

- 32. The contractor shall keep an accurate record of use of materials like cement steel used in the work in a manner prescribed by the Engineer-in-charge.
- 33. Department Bitumen will be issued to the contractor on proper H.R. at the prevailing rate for bonafied use in work allotted to him as per availability.
- 34. Materials actually consumed in the work will be calculated on the basis of approved design and specification and/ or field and laboratory test and materials received by the contractor in excess of actual consumption as determined by above methods will be charged at penal rates being twice the issue rates of the market rate plus 10% whichever is higher.

Project Director,

BUIDCo. Patna

SECTION 3 SECURITIES AND OTHER FORMS (to be filled by Bidder)

BID SECURITY (BANK GUARANTEE UNCONDITIONAL)

WHERE	EAS,				[name	e of Bidde	r] (herei	nafter (called "the	Bidder") has
submitte	d hi	s Bid	dated				[date]	for	the	constru	ıction	of
			[n	ame of C	Contract l	herei	nafter calle	ed "the l	Bid"].			
KNOW	ALL DE	ODI E 1		41 4 337 -							F.,	C
			nese presents									
Bankj	01				Iname	01				Bank") are		
BUIDCo	I td (hereinafter	called "the	Employe	r") in th	e siii	_ `					*for
			ly to be made									_
by these			,			1)	3		,			υ
SEALEI) with th	ne Common	Seal of the s	said Banl	c this		day of		20			
SEI IEEI	J 111111 ti		Sour or the s	ara Bam			uu		_,	— ·		
THE CC	MINITIO	ONIC afabia	ahliaatian a									
THE CC	MDITIC	JINS OI UIIS	obligation ar	e.								
(1)	If after	Bid openin	g the Bidder	withdra	ws his b	oid du	aring the p	period o	f Bid v	validity spe	cified in	1 the
	Form o	f Bid;										
					OD							
					OR							
(2)	If the B	idder havin	g been notif	ied to the	e accepta	ance	of his bid	by the l	Employ	yer during t	he perio	od of
	Bid val	idity:										
	(2)	£0:10 00 00	.C	40 41.0	F	£ 1 ~					.44:	
	(a)		fuses to exe f required; or		Form o	I Ag	reement ii	1 accord	iance v	with the in	struction	is to
		Didders, ii	required, or									
	(b)	fails or re	fuses to furr	nish the	Performa	ance	Security,	in acco	rdance	with the In	nstructio	n to
		Bidders; o	r									
	(c)	does not a	ccept the cor	rection o	of the Ric	l Dric	e nurcuan	t to cond	perned	clauce		
	(0)	does not a	ecept the cor	rection	inc Dic	1 1 1 IC	c pursuam	i to conc	criica	ciausc.		
	We und	dertake to p	pay to the E	Employer	up to	the a	bove amo	unt upo	n rece	eipt of his	first wr	itten
		_	yer having to				_				_	-
			laimed by hi				ng to the	occurrer	nce of	one or any	of the t	hree
condition	ns, (spec	ifying the o	occurred cond	dition or	condition	ns).						

DETAILED PROJECT REPORT OF NOORANIBAGH PARK (WARD NO.-53, PHASE-2) AT PATNA

BILL OF QUANTITIES (BOQ)

the deadline for submissi extended by the Employe	will remain in force up to and including the dateion of Bids as such deadline is stated in the Instructions or, notice of which extension(s) to the Bank is hereby was each the Bank not later than the above date.	s to Bidders or as it may be
DATE	SIGNATURE	_
WITNESS	SEAL	
[Signature, name and add	ress]	

- * The Bidder should insert the amount of the guarantee in words and figures denominated in Indian Rupees. This figure should be the same as shown in Clause 16.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.
- ** 45 days after the end of the validity period of the Bid. Date should be inserted by the employer before the bidding documents are issued.

PERFORMANCE BANK GUARANTEE

То	
	[name of Employer]
	[address of Employer]
called "the	EREAS [name and address of Contractor] (hereafter Contractor") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No dated to execute [name of Contract and brief description of
Works] (here	inafter called "the Contract").
you with a Bahis obligation	O WHEREAS it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Contractor shall furnish ank Guarantee by a recognized bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with in accordance with the Contract; O WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Contractor such a Bank Guarantee:
AINI	WHEREAS we have agreed to give the Contractor such a Bank Quarantee.
	W THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you on behalf of or, up to a total of [amount of guarantee]*
demand an	(in words), such sum being payable in the types and proportions of which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written d without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of amount of guarantee] as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to sor reasons for your demand for the sum specified therein.
We us with the de	hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the contractor before presenting emand.
the Works to and the Cont	further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of be performed there under or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between your ractor shall in any way release us from any liability under this guarantee, and we hereby waive such change, addition or modification.
This	guarantee shall be valid until 28 days from the date of expiry of the Defect Liability Period.
	Signature and Seal of the guarantor
	Name of Bank
	Address
	Date

^{*} An amount shall be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage the Contract Price specified in the Contract including additional security for unbalanced Bids, if any and denominated in Indian Rupees.

PART'B'

(To be filled up by the tenderer)

1.	Rate	quoted	by	the	tenderer
	above	/below in both figures a	nd word applicable fo		percent
2.	Time	of completion	:		
3.	Earnes	st money deposited	:		
4.	Contra	actors Registration No. &	& date :		
5.	Signat	ure and address of the to	enderer :		
6.	N.B. :	i) Special condition sha	ll form a part of the a	ngreement.	
		ii) Rates are to be quo of bending and binding	1 2		est including that
		iii) Tenderer are not to required to quote their estimated rates shown follow the above instruand rejected.	rates as single comm	non percentage about tity. It is obligat	ove or below the tory on them to
				Project Dire BUIDCo, Patna	ector,
Sold to)				
	N/o .				
	•				

PART-'C' (FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY)

1.	No. of cutting	:
2.	No. of overwriting	:
3.	Quoted rate	:
4.	Earnest Money	:
5.	Time of completion	:
6.	No. of pages	:
7.	Firm registration certificate	:
8.	PAN/TIN certificate	:
9	Proof of previous similar experiences	ç.

SECTION 4 BILL OF QUANTITIES

BILL OF QUANTITIES

Preamble

- 1. The Bill of Quantities shall be read in conjunction with the Instructions to Bidders, Conditions of Contract, Technical Specifications and Drawings.
- 2. The quantities given in the Bill of Quantities are estimated and provisional, and are given to provide a common basis for bidding. The basis of payment will be the actual quantities of work ordered and carried out, as measured by the Contractor and verified by the Engineer and valued at the rates and prices tendered in the priced Bill of Quantities, where applicable, and otherwise at such rates and prices as the Engineer may fix within the terms of the Contract.
- 3. The rates and prices tendered in the priced Bill of Quantities shall, except in so far as it is otherwise provided under the Contract, include all constructional plant, labour supervision, materials, erection, maintenance, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks, liabilities and obligations set out or implied in the Contract.
- 4. The rates and prices shall be quoted entirely in Indian Currency.
- 5. A rate whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the items provided in the priced Bill of Quantities, and where no Items are provided the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related Items of Work.
- 6. The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the items provided in the priced Bill of Quantities, and where no Items are provided the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related Items of Work.
- 7. General directions and descriptions of work and materials are not necessarily repeated or summarized in the Bill of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the contract documentation shall be made before entering rates or prices against each item in the Bill of Quantities.
- 8. The method of measurement of completed work for payment shall be in accordance with the specification issued by the department time to time.
- 9. Errors will be corrected by BUIDCo for any arithmetic errors pursuant to the Instructions to Bidders.

Note:

- 1. Item for which no rate or price has been entered in will not be paid for by BUIDCo when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the bill of quantities
- 2. Unit rates and prices shall be quoted by the bidder in Indian rupee
- 3. Where there is a discrepancy between the rate in figures and words, the rates in words will govern.
- 4. Where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by quantity, the unit rate quoted shall govern

BILL OF QUANTITIES (BOQ) OF NOORANIBAGH COMMUNITY PARK, PATNA

Sl. No.	Description of Items	Quantity	Unit	Rate (Rs.)		
SI. 110.	Description of Items	Quantity	Unit	In figure	In word	
1	Surface dressing of the ground including removing vegetation and in-equalities not exceeding 15 cm deep and disposal of rubbish, lead upto 50 m and lift upto 1.5 m	64.54	100 SQ.M	478.00	Four hundred seventy eight rupees	
2	Making 25 cm (10") dia bore up to required depth below ground with hand auger of approved quality in ordinary soil (vide classification of soil item - A) true to plumb and without eccentricity in any stage of operation and disposal of the excavated earth up to 50 m lead including all lifts, all complete as per approved design and direction of E/I.	306	M	59.80	Fifty nine rupees & eighty paisa	
3	Making 63 cm (25") dia under ream at required depth with hand Rimmer of approved quality in ordinary soil (vide classification of soil item - A) true to plumb and without eccentricity in any stage of operation and disposal of the excavated earth up to 50 m lead including all lifts, all complete as per approved design and direction of E/I.	171	Each	63.80	Sixty three rupees & eighty paisa	
4	Earth work in excavation over areas (exceeding 30 cm in depth, 1.5 m in width as well as 10 sqm on plan) including dressing of sides and ramming of bottom, lift upto 1.5m including getting out the excavated soil and disposal of surplus soil as directed, within a lead of 50m.	130.61	Cu.M.	132.90	One hundred thirty two rupees & ninety paisa	
5	Filling available excavated earth (excluding rock) in trenches, plinth, sides of foundations, etc. in layers not exceeding 20 cm in depth, consolidating each deposited layer by ramming and watering upto 50m and lift upto 1.5 m.	130.60	Cu.M	42.90	Forty two rupees & ninety paisa	

6	Supply and filling in plinth & Foundation with local sand and under floors including watering, ramming, consolidating and dressing and dressing complete.	137.16	Cu.M	135.34	One hundred thirty five rupees & thirty four paisa
7	Providing designation 100 - A, brick flat soling joints filled with local sand including cost of watering, taxes and royalty all complete as per building specification and direction of Engineer In-charge.	798.90	Sq.M	164.40	One hundred sixty four rupees & forty paisa
8	Providing and laying of in position cement concrete of specified grade, excluding the cost of centering and shuttering all work upto plinth level. 1:3:6 (1 Cement: 3 Coarse sand: 6 graded stone aggregate 40mm nominal size)	107.99	Cu.M	2164.50	Two thousand one hundred sixty four rupees & fifty paisa
9	Providing and laying of in position, of specified mix of reinforced cement concrete, excluding the cost of centering and shuttering, finishing and reinforcement - all work upto plinth level: 1:1½:3 (1 Cement: 1½ Coarse sand: 3 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size) in foundation of col.	27.14	Cu.M	3352.60	Three thousand three hundred fifty two rupees & sixty paisa
10	Reinforced cement concrete work in wall (any thickness), including attached pilasters, butteresses, plinth and string courses, fillets, columns, pillars, piers, abutments, posts and struts, etc. upto floor v level, excluding costs of centering, shuttering, finishing and reinforcement.: Col. In plinth & superstructure: 1:1½:3 (1 Cement: 1½ Coarse sand: 3 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size).	22.04	Cu.M	3387.90	Three thousand three hundred eighty seven rupees & ninety paisa
11	Reinforced cement concrete work in beams, upto five level excluding cost of centring, shuttering and finishing and reinforcement with 1:1½:3(1cement: 1½ coarse sand :3 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size)	107.58	Cu.M	3562.40	Three thousand five hundred sixty two rupees & forty paisa

12	Brick work with bricks of class of class designation 100 A in foundation and plinth in : Cement mortar 1: 6 (1 cement : 6 coarse sand)	177.47	Cu.M	2920.70	Two thousand nine hundred twenty rupees & seventy paisa
13	Brick work with bricks of class of class designation 100 A in superstructure upto floor V level in : Cement mortar 1: 6 (1 cement : 6 coarse sand)	117.03	Cu.M	3201.10	Three thousand two hundred one rupees & ten paisa
14	Half brick masony with bricks of class designation 100 A in superstructure above plinth level upto floor V level in : Cement mortar 1: 4 (1 cement : 4 coarse sand)	87.91	Sq.M	427.50	Four hundred twenty seven rupees & fifty paisa
15	Cement Plaster in coarse sand with 12 mm cement plaster 1:4 (1 Cement : 4 Coarse Sand)	1203.23	Sq.M	72.70	Seventy two rupees & seventy paisa
16	Forming grooves of uniform size 12X12 mm and upto 25X15 mm in plastered surface as per approved pattern using wooden battens, nailed to the under layer including removal of wooden battens, repairs to the edges of plaster panel and finishing the groove, complete as per specification and direction of E/I.	1006.50	М	23.50	Twenty three rupees & fifty paisa
17	Reinforcement for RCC work including straightening, cutting bending, placing in position and binding all complete.				
17a	Thermo Mechanically treated bars TMTC - 415- 8 mm dia.	5425	K.G.	61.60	Sixty one rupees & sixty paisa
17b	Themo Mechanically Treated bars TMTC -415-10 mm dia.	2862.5	K.G.	61.00	Sixty one rupees
17c	Themo Mechanically Treated bars TMTC -415-12 mm dia.	2872.5	K.G.	60.30	Sixty rupees & thirty paisa
17d	Themo Mechanically Treated bars TMTC -415-16 mm dia.	610	K.G.	60.30	Sixty rupees & thirty paisa

18	Providing & ejecting Chemical emulsion for pre-constructional anti termite treatment and creating a chemical barrier under a all-round the column pits, wall trenches, basement excavation, top surface of plinth filling junction of wall and floor along the external perimeter of building expansion joints, surrounding of pipes and conducts tic. complete(plinth area of the building at ground floor only shall be measured) with Chlorpyrifos 20% EC as per building specification and direction of E/I. (4 stages treatment)	2273.39	Sq.M	115.00	One hundred fifteen rupees
19	40 mm thick cement concrete flooring with concrete hardener topping under layer 50 mm th. Cement concrete 1:2:4 (1 cement : 2 coarse sand : 4 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size) and top layer 12 mm thick cement hardener consisting of mix 1:2 (1 Cement hardener mix : 2 graded stone aggregate 6 mm nominal size) by vol. Hardening compound is mixed @ 2 Litre per 50 kg of cement or as per manufacturers specifications. This includes coat of cement slurry.	53.65	Sq.M	265.80	Two hundred sixty five rupees & eighty paisa
20	Cement plaster skirting with cement mortar 1:3 (1 Cement : 3 coarse sand) finished with a floating coat of neat cement.	107.30	Sq M	156.70	One hundred fifty six rupees & seventy paisa
21	Providing and fixing M. S. Grills of requirement pattern in frames of windows etc. with m.s. flats, square bars etc. all complete. : Fixed to steel window by welding	1140.21	KG.	72.20	Seventy two rupees & twenty paisa
22	Applying one coat of cement primer of approved brand and manufacturer on wall surface : cement primer on outer wall surface	922.05	Sq.M	18.10	Eighteen rupees & ten paisa
23	Painting with Synthetic enamel paints of approved brand and	31.96	Sq.M	41.50	Forty one rupees & fifty

	manufacture of required color to				paisa
	give an even shade: Two or more coats on new work				
24	Stone Soling	119.45	Sq.M	325.00	Three hundred twenty five rupees
25	Chequerred precast cement concrete tiles 22 mm thick in footpath & courtyard jointed with neat cement slurry mixed with pigment to match the shade of tiles including rubbing and cleaning etc. complete on 20mm thick bed of cement mortar 1:4 (1 cement : 4 coarse sand) : Dark shade using ordinary cement	308.43	Sq.M	525.90	Five hundred twenty five rupees & ninety paisa
26	Cement Plaster in coarse sand with 12 mm cement plaster 1:6 (1 Cement : 6 Coarse Sand)	309.05	Sq.M	61.90	Sixty one rupees & ninety paisa
27	6 mm Cement Plaster to Ceiling of mix -	226.84	Sq.M	52.80	Fifty two rupees & eighty only
28	Making plinth protection 50 mm thick of cement concrete 1:3:6 (1 cement : 3 coarse sand : 6 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size) over 75 mm dry brick ballast 40 mm nominal size well rammed and consolidated and grouted with fine sand including finishing the top smooth.	62.19	Sq.M	264.95	Two hundred sixty four rupees & ninety five paisa
29	Brick edging - 7cm wide 11.4 cm deep to plinth protection with bricks of class designation 75 including grouting with cement mortar 1:4 (1 Cement : 4 fine sand)	102.03	М	19.34	Nineteen rupees & thirty four paisa
30	Kota stone slab flooring over 20 mm (average) thick base laid over and jointed with grey cement slurry mixed with pigment to match the shade of the slab including rubbing and polishing complete.	129.72	Sq. M	800.80	Eight hundred rupees & eighty paisa
31	Kotah stone slabs 25 mm thick in risers of steps, skirting dado and pillars laid on 12 mm (average)	21.87	Sq. M	972.70	Nine hundred seventy two rupees &

	thick cement mortar 1:3 (1 Cement : 3 Coarse sand) and jointed with grey cement slurry mixed with pigment to match the shade of slab including rubbing and polishing complete.				seventy paisa
32	Finishing walls with water poofing cement paint of approved brand and manufacturer and of required shade to give an even shade.	833.45	Sq.M	59.80	Fifty nine rupees & eighty paisa
33	Providing Cement Tile Design over sloping roof with two coats of 12 mm th. Water proofing cement plaster in c.m. (1:4) including making approved tile design, with all leads, labours, materials, taxes, curing with hessian cloth, all complete as per direction of E/I.	213.13	Sq.M	165.00	One hundred sixty five rupees
34	Providing water proofing treatment including preparation of surface as required for treatment of SLOPING ROOF consisting of following operations. 1) Cement slurry with sika latex power (1 LTR. Per bag) and cement mortar (1:4) mixed with plastocrete super (100 ml per bag of cement) to get smooth surface. 2) Two coats of Polymer coating with Sika Raintite (minimum consumption = 1Ltr. In 18 S.FT.) by brush on all surface and sand screeding on top. 3) Layer of cement slurry with Sika Latex Power (@ 1Ltr. Per bag of Cement.) over polymer surface. 4) top surface to be finished with tile design (as per approved) with cement mortar (1:4) and plastocrete super (100ml per bag of cement))cement)Laying average 2" th. P.C.C. (1:2:4) and 3" th. Slope with Sika Plastocrete Super (100 ml per bag of cement) 5) Curing minimum 21 days with hessian cloth/jute bag.	213.13	Sq.M	435.00	Four hundred thirty five rupees
35	Providing and laying damp-proof Course 50 mm thick with cement concrete 1:2:4 (1 cement : 2 coarse sand : 4 graded stone aggregate	18.36	Sq.M	180.10	One hundred eighty rupees & ten paisa

	20mm nominal size)				
36	Extra for providing and mixing water proofing material in d.p.c. in the proportion recommended by the manufacturer.	5.88	50 kg cement	30.10	Thirty rupees & ten paisa
37	Applying a coat of residual petroleum bitumen of penetration 80/100 of approved quality using 1.7kg per square metre on damp roof course after clearing the surface with brushes and finally with apiece of cloth lightly soaked in kerosene oil.	18.36	Sq.M	67.30	Sixty seven rupees & thirty paisa
38	Providing and fixing M.S. Fan clamp type 1 of 16 mm	2.00	Each	98.20	Ninety eight rupees & twenty paisa
39	Providing 40x5 mm flat iron hold fast 40 cm. long including fixing to frame with 10mm diameter bolts nuts and wooden plugs and embeddings in cement concrete block 30x10x15 cm. 1:3:6 mix (1 cement : 3 coarse sand : 6 graded stone aggregate 20 mm nominal size	42	Each	58.50	Fifty eight rupees & fifty paisa
40	Providing wood work in frames of doors, windows, clerestory windows and other frames, wrought framed and fixed in position (sal wood)	0.29	Cu.M	40501.00	Forty thousand five hundred one rupees
41	Providing and fixing flush door shutters non decorative type, core of block board construction with frame of 1 st class hard wood and well matched commercial 3 ply veneering with vertical grains or cross bands and face veneers on both faces of shutters: 35 mm thick including stainless butt hinges with necessary screws-	11.55	Sq. M	1170.60	One thousand one hundred seventy rupees & sixty paisa
42	Providing and fixing fully steel glazed windows or ventilators of standard rolled 'Z' and mullion steel sections, joints mitered and welded with 15x3mm lugs 10 cm long with steel lugs embeded in cement	9.93	Sq.M.	2475.00	Two thousand four hundred seventy five rupees

	concrete blocks 15x10x10cm of 1:3:6 (1 Cement: 3 Coarse Sand: 6 Graded stone aggregate 20mm nominal size) or with wooden plugs and screws or rawl plugs and screws or with fixing clips or with bolts and nuts as required, including providing and fixing of 4mm thick glass panes with glazing clips and special metal-sash putty of approved make complete including applying a priming coat of approved steel primer, excluding the cost of metal beading and other fitting except hinges or pivots as required.				
43	Extra for providing and fixing steel beading of approved shade and section with screws instead of glazing clips and met. Sash putty in steel windows, ventilators & composite units: Steel Windows	9.93	Sq.M.	229.60	Two hundred twenty nine rupees & sixty paisa
44	Painting with Synthetic enamel paints of approved brand and manufacture of required color to give an even shade: Two or more coats on new work over an under coat of suitable shade with ordinary paint of approved brand and manufacture.	37.58	Sq.M	63.90	Sixty three rupees & ninety paisa
45	Providing septic tank for 100 users masonary septic tank of size (18'-0'x4'-0'x6'-0")effective size and I.C. of required size with 250 mm thick brick wall in cement mortar (1:4) including base of 4" thick PCC (1:3:6) over brick soling and sand filling with two coats of CICO plaster(1:4) with punning and providing and fixing CI cover with frame including sealing coal tarring of cover complete with all earth work excavation back filling and disposal of surplus earth as per details drawing & carriage of materials, complete job.	1.00	Each	72,400.00	Seventy two thousand four hundred
46	Making Soak Pit 2.5 m diameter 3.0 meter deep with 45x45cm dry briick honey comb shaft with bricks of	1.00	Each	11,826.99	Eleven thousand eight hundred

	class designation 75 and S.W. drain pipe 100 mm diameter, 1.8m long complete as per standard design .				twenty six rupees & ninety paisa
47	Providing & laying Endura H.R. johnson Acid & Alkali resistant Tiles of approved shade and color and size of 1' X1' laid on 20 mm th. Cement mortar (1:4) in Flooring & Skirting including pointing the joints with white cement and matching pigment and chemical etc. complete job.	33.45	Sq.M	810.00	Eight hundred ten rupees
48	Providing and fixing 1 st quality ceramic galzed wall ties conforming to IS: 15622 (Thickness to be specified by the manufacture) of approved make in all colours, shades excupt burgudy, bottle green black of any size as approved by Engineer ing charge in skiting riser of steps and dados over 12 mm thick bed of cement motar 1:3(1 cement: 3 coarse sand) and pointing with grey cement slurry @ 3.3 kg per sqm including pointing in while with pigment of matching shade complete.	77.66	Sq. M	760.90	Seven hundred sixty rupees & ninety paisa
49	Providing and fixing wooden moulded beading to door frames with iron screws, plugs and priming coat on unexposed surface etc. complete. 50X20 MM	26.72	R. M.	90.10	Ninety rupees & ten paisa
50	Providing and fixing 1mm thick PVC rigid foam sheet over w.c.'s door shutter using synthetic rubber based adhesive (Fevicol SR 998 or equivalent).	4.88	Sq. M	499.03	Four hundred ninety nine rupees & three paisa
51	Providing and placing on terrace (at all floor levels) polyethylene water storage tank ISI: 12701 marked indicating the BIS License No. with cover and suitable locking arrangement and making necessary holes for inlet, outlet and overflow pipes but without fittings and the	6000.00	LT.	4.92	Four rupees & ninety two paisa

	base support for tank (sintex/ Electroplast/ Gangotri) Capacity- 2000 litre each				
52	Earth work in excavation in foundation Trenches in hard rock (vide classification of soil item -E) in non-blasting zone with initial lead of 50M and lift of 1.5M including cost of cutting, chiseling, hammering, wedging beating with approved types of tools and equipments and removing the spoils do-do-total volume paid.	15.50	Cu.M	432.4	Four hundred thirty two rupees & four paisa
53	Extra for each subsequent lift up to 1M beyond the initial lift of 1.5M in all kind of rock as per specification and direction of E/I.	15.50	Cu.M	31.76	Thirty one rupees & seventy six paisa
54	Excavating trenches of required width for pipes cables, etc, including excavation for sockets, and dressing of sides, ramming of bottoms, depth upto 1.5 m including getting out the excavated soil, and then returning the soil as required, in layers not exceeding 20 cm in depth including consolidating each deposited layer by ramming, watering etc, and disposing of surplus excavated soil as directed, within a lead of 50m. Pipes, cables etc, not exceeding 80m dia.	15.50	Cu.M	83.10	Eighty three rupees & ten paisa
55	Excavating trenches of required width for pipes cables, etc, including excavation for sockets, depth upto 1.5 m including getting out the excavated materials, returning the soil as required in layers not exceeding 20 cm depth including consolidating each deposited layer by ramming, watering, etc. stacking serviceable material for measurements and disposed of unserviceable material as directed, within a lead of 50 m;	10.33	Cu.M.	126.40	One hundred twenty six rupees & four paisa

56	Providing coarse clean local sand in filling in foundation trenches or in plinth including ramming and watering in layer not exceeding 125 mm thick with all leads and 1.5 M lifts including cost of all materials, labours, royalty and taxes all complete as per building specification and direction of Engineer In-charge (Mode of measurement compacted volume)	1.95	Cu.M.	135.34	One hundred thirty five rupees & thirty four paisa
57	Supplying and laying (properly as per design and drawing) rip-rap with good quality of boulders duly packed including the cost of materials, royalty all taxes etc. but excluding the cost of carriage all complete as per specification and direction of E/I.	1.95	Cu.M	507.46	Five hundred seven rupees & forty six paisa
58	Providing P.C.C. M-10 with nominal mix of (1:3:6) in Foundation with approved quality of stone metal grade III (53 to 22.4 mm size) and clean coarse sand of F.M. 2.5 to 3, mixing cement concrete in mixture.	1.95	Sq.M	2164.50	Two thousand one hundred sixty four rupees & fifty paisa
59	Providing P.C.C M-10 foundation with approved quality of shuttering, mixing cement concrete in mixture, placing in position, vibration, striking, curing, taxes and royalty all complete as per building specification & direction of E/I.	1.95	Cu.M	122.85	One hundred twenty two rupees & eighty five paisa
60	Close timbering in trenches including shuttering shoring and packing cavated wherever required depth not exceeding 1.5M complete as per specification and direction of E/I. (Mode of measurement to taken of area of timbared.)	9.17	Sq.M.	83.40	Eighty three rupees & forty paisa
61	Close timbering in trenches including shuttering shoring and packing cavated wherever required depth exceeding 1.5M but up to complete as per specification and direction of E/I.	4.08	Sq.M.	85.50	Eighty five hundred rupees & fifty paisa

62	Providing P.C.C./R.C.C. M-20 with nominal mix(1:1.5:3) with approved quality of stone chips 20mm to 6mm size and clean coarse sand of 2.5 to 3.5 F.M. in foundation and plinth including mixing cement concrete in mixer, screening royalty and all taxes with hire charges of machinery all complete with cost all labour and materials as per most specification and direction of E/I. including cost of shuttering.	13.70	Cu.M	3352.60	Three thousand three hundred fifty two rupees & sixty paisa
63	Providing P.C.C./R.C.C. M-20 with nominal mix(1:1.5:3) with approved quality of stone chips 20mm to 6mm size and clean coarse sand of 2.5 to 3.5 F.M. in bed plate, cap of pier and abutment, wall, approach slab, including mixing cement concrete in mixer, screening royalty and all taxes with hire charges of machinery all complete with cost all labour and materials as per most specification and direction of E/I. including cost of shuttering.	3.86	Cu.M	3387.90	Three thousand three hundred eighty seven rupees & ninety paisa
64	Providing P.C.C./R.C.C. M-25 with approved quality of stone chips 20mm to 6mm size and clean coarse sand of 2.5 to 3.5 F.M. in deck slab including mixing cement concrete in mixer, screening royalty and all taxes with hire charges of machinery all complete with cost all labour and materials as per most specification and direction of E/I. including cost of shuttering.	1.00	Cu.M	4866.30	Four thousand eight hundred sixty six rupees & thirty paisa
65	Supplying and drawing following size of FR PVC insulated copper conductor, cable in the existing surface/recessed PVC conduit as required:				
65a	2 X 1.5 sq mm .	200.00	Meter	41.00	Forty one rupees
65b	3 X 2.5 sq mm .	400.00	Meter	85.00	Eighty five rupees

66	Supplying and fixing of following size of PVC conduit along with the accessories in surface/recessed including cutting the wall / floor and making good the same incase of recessed conduit as required: 25 mm	600.00	Meter	52.00	Fifty two rupees
67	Supplying and fixing integral post top lantern with clear/opal acrylic for single compact fluorescent lamp, complete with all accessories but without lamp including connection and earthing the body etc. as required.	16.00	Each	1420.00	One thousand four hundred twenty rupees
68	Supplying and laying following sizes and core PVC / XLPE insulated PVC sheathed heavy duty armoured electrical cable with alluminium conductor for working voltage upto and including 1100 volts. & drawing of 4core x16qs mm AL.AR cable: 16 sq mm x 4 core	60.00	Meter	235.00	Two hundred thirty five rupees
69	Supplying and fixing of HCS 360 1* PL-C 18W fixture with lamp.(PHILLIPS/HEVELLS/K-LITE)	30.00	Each	5,577.00	Five thousand five hundred seventy seven rupees
70	Supplying and fixing of sonara Post top lamp fitting with all asso. (HPS360/150W PHILLIPS/HEVELLS/K-LITE)	12.00	Each	10,875.00	Ten thousand eight hundred seventy five rupees
71	Supplying and fixing following sizes G.I pipes with making holes in ground and grouting the pole with cement ,sand ,chips ratio 1:2:4 including painting the pole etc. as required. : 1.83 mtr (6feet)32mm dia.	12.00	Each	743.00	Seven hundred forty three rupees
72	Supplying and fixing of Watertight lamp fitting with all accessories (NHG-10, PHILLIPS/ HEVELLS/ K-LITE)	6.00	Each	4,215.00	Four thousand two hundred fifteen rupees
73	Supplying and fixing weatherproof iron sheet cubical panel board,	15.00	Sq.M	881.00	Eight hundred eighty one

	fabricated with following guage iron sheet, suitable for panel mounted switch disconnector, including busbar chamber, insulator, not-bolt and painting etc. as required. : with 14 SWG iron sheet.				rupees
74	Providing and fixing following rating and capacity four pole MCB in existing panel board, including drilling holes in cubical panel making connection, etc. as required.				
74a	100Amps 16KA	1.00	Each	4,788.00	Four thousand seven hundred eighty eight rupees
74b	100Amps bus-bar	1.00	Each	2,192.00	Two thousand one hundred ninety two only
74c	100Amps 4 pole changeover switch on load .	1.00	Each	6,465.00	Six thousand four hundred sixty five rupees
74d	6/32 Amps DP MCB	12.00	Each	479.00	Four hundred seventy nine rupees
75	Earthing with G.I pipe 4.5 mtr long 40 mm dia including accessories, and providing massonary enclosure with cover plate having locking arrangement and watering pipe etc. with charcoal and salt as required.	2.00	Each	2,803.00	Two thousand eight hundred three rupees
76	Wiring for light point / exhaust fan point with 1.5 sq mm FR PVC insulated copper conductor single core cable in surface/recessed PVC conduit, with moduler type switch, moduler plate, suitable size GI box etc. as required.	10.00	Each	472.00	Four hundred seventy two rupees
77	Supplying and fixing bulkhead fitting with 18w CFL lamp. (PHILLIPS/ HEVELLS/K-LITE)	8.00	Each	460.00	Four hundred sixty rupees

78	Trench cutting of suitable size (0.457 & 0.762) in 0.228m thickness PCC & soil with 8nos. Brick for width wise covering the cable and refilling it with sand etc. as required	300.00	Metre	156.00	One hundred fifty six rupees
79	Supply and fitting of light fitting on the gate including light, cutting the grooves and fixing the 2" dia G.I. Pipe required (for 2 nos. gate light) (Phillips/Havell's/K-lite)	4.00	Each	3,000.00	Three thousand rupees
80	Providing and fixing of 300mm exhaust fan/ bracket fan including making suitable arrangements as per site conditions. (USHA/ ORIENT/ POLLAR)	2.00	Each	1,700.00	One thousand seven hundred rupees
81	Erection of Ceiling Fan as per specifications (USHA/ ORIENT/ POLLAR)	1.00	Each	1,750.00	One thousand seven hundred fifty rupees
82	Drilling 400mm bore in alluvium with reverse circulation rotary rig from Ground Level. (G.L. to 40 m deep) For Recharge Well	25	RM	750.00	Seven hundred fifty rupees
83	Providing and lowering uPVC 250mm CS nominal bore or 280 outer dia casing pipe (Conforming to IS:12818) for recharge well complete with centring guides etc. complete.	10	RM	2600.00	Two thousand six hundred rupees
84	Providing and lowering uPVC 250mm CS nominal bore or 280 outer dia screen pipe (Conforming to IS:12818) for recharge well complete with centring guides etc. complete.	15	RM	2800.00	Two thousand eight hundred rupees
85	Providing and laying Geotextile layer in recharge well to be fixed as per standard drawing.	6	Sq.m.	450.00	Four hundred fifty rupees
86	Providing and laying rounded pea gravel washed and sieved 3 to 6mm nominal bore.	6	Cu.m	500.00	Five hundred rupees
87	Providing and constructing of	1	Each	225000.0	Two lakh

	recharge well 3.0m dia and 1.7m depth (internal) size with inlet & outlet connection with I class brick work in cement mortar 1:4 (1 cement:4 coarse sand) inside and outside 12 mm thick plaster with cement mortar 1:3 (1 cement: 3 coarse sand) with a floating coat of neat cement on inside surface, foundation concrete 1:4:8 (1 cement: 4 coarse sand: 8 graded stone aggregate of 40 mm nominal size), well shall be filled with 500mm deep coarse sand of size 1.5 to 2.0mm, 500mm deep gravel 5 to 10cm and boulders 5 to 20cm size over entire well area. Well shall be provided with SFRC cover heavy duty of 560 mm dia including necessary excavation backing filling, disposal of surplus earth, providing and fixing of polypropylene coated manhole steps complete as per standard design			0	twenty five thousand rupees
88	Uprooting rank vegetation and weeds and doing necessary soil working where degraded by digging the area to a depth of 60cm removing all weeds and other growth with roots by forking repeatedly, breaking clods, rough dressing, flooding with water, uprooting fresh growths after 10 to 15 days and then fine dressing for planting new grass, disposal of all rubbish with all leads and lifts.	22.77	100 Sq.m	1,213.50	One thousand two hundred thirteen rupees & fifty paisa
89	Supplying and stacking of good earth at site including royalty and carriage (2277(area)x 0.75 (height) - 803 (Pathway, gazeboo and pumphouse area)	904.75	Cu.M	286.28	Two hundred eighty six rupees & twenty eight paisa
90	Supplying and stacking sludge / manure at site including royalty and carriage up to 1 km (earth measured in stacks will be reduced by 8% for payment)	44.22	Cu.M	176.85	One hundred seventy six rupees & eighty five paisa
91	Rough dressing the trenched ground including breaking clods etc. all	22.77	100	30.00	Thirty rupees

	complete as per specifications : Area of park		Sq.m		
92	Spreading of sludge, dump manure or/and good earth in required thickness (Cost of sludge, dump manure or/and good earth to be paid separately).	44.22	Cu.M	10.50	Ten rupees & fifty paisa
93	Mixing earth and sludge or manure in proportion specified .	44.22	Cu.M	7.30	Seven rupees & thirty paisa
94	Grassing with 'Doob' glass including watering and maintenance of the lawn for 30 days or more till the grass forms a thick lawn free from weeds and fit for mowing including supplying good earth if needed: In rows 5 cm apart in either direction all complete as per specifications: Area except pathway and gazebos, pump house etc	13.10	100 Sq.M	355.00	Three hundred fifty five rupees
95	Preparation of beds for hedging and shrubbery by excavating 60cm deep and trenching the excavated base to a further depth of 30cm, refilling the excavated earth after breaking clods and mixing with sludge or manure in the ratio of 8:1 (8 parts of stacked volume of earth after reduction by 20%: one part of stacked volume of sludge or manure after reduction by 8%, flooding with water, filling with earth if necessary, watering and finally fine dressing, leveling etc. including stacking and disposal of materials declared unserviceable and surplus earth by spreading and leveling as directed, within a lead of 50m lift up to 1.5m complete (cost of sludge, manure or extra earth to be paid for separately): Both side of pathway	40.66	Cu.M	44.70	Forty four rupees & seventy paisa
96	Digging holes in ordinary soil and refilling the same with the excavated earth mixed with manure or sludge in the ratio of 2:1 by volume (2 parts of stacked volume of earth after reduction by 20%:1	210.00	Each	23.25	Twenty three rupees & twenty five paisa

	part of stacked volume of manure after reduction by 8%) flooding with water, dressing including removal of rubbish and surplus earth, if any with all leads and lifts (cost of manure, sludge or extra good earth if needed to be paid for separately): Holes 60cm dia, and 60cm deep all complete as per specification				
97	Plantation of tall shrubs including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction <i>Poinsetia metalica</i> , Hibiscus diff. varieties, callendra diff. varieties, Croton redi, <i>Thuberjia erecta, Nerium oleander, Thevetia Peruviana</i> , each items (upto 3' ht) at least 4 nos all complete as per specification.	28.00	Each	500.00	Five hundred rupees
98	Plantation of medium shrubs including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction <i>Tecoma capensia, Tutia fruticosa, Ixocaria bicolour, Clerodendron thomson, Beloperon gutata, Jesminum, Pentas</i> diff. colour, each items (upto 2' ht) at least 4 nos all complete as per specification.	28.00	Each	500.00	Five hundred rupees
99	Plantation of dwarf shrubs including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction Cupia minata, Ruhalia dwarf, Accalypha bangalore, Aspergus diff. varieties, Plambago capensis, Gardania dwarf, Arelia dwarf, each items (upto 1' ht) at least 4 nos all complete as per specification.	28.00	Each	500.00	Five hundred rupees
100	Plantation of bottle palm plants including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction each 6' to 8 ' in height all complete as per specification	4.00	Each	750.00	Seven hundred fifty rupees

101	Plantation of Misc. specimens/ ornamental plants including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction Foxtail Palm, Areca palm, Kentia palm, Phonex rubalini, Rexona palm, Cycus revoluta, Nolina recarrata, Ficus starlight, Rapis palm. Shampian palm, etc. each items (upto 5' ht) at least 2 nos each all complete as per specification	20.00	Each	500.00	Five hundred rupees
102	Plantation of Bamboo varieties including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction, Golden, Budha, Black, Variegated, Chiness each items (upto 5' ht) at least 4 nos. all complete as per specifications.	20.00	Each	750.00	Seven hundred fifty rupees
103	Plantation of hedge and ground cover by preparing bed with double line plantation on 50 cm wide bed, plant to plant distance 20 cm, supply of good hedge and ground cover plants with appropriates height, planting, watering etc., Golden doranta, Kamini, Malpigia coesiera, Alternethera Mixed variety, Cupia, Accalypha, Wedellia, filling the hole with sluge, manure and fertilizer all complete as per specifications. both side of pathways	200.00	R.M	350.00	Three hundred fifty rupees
104	Preparation of annual bed, digging of soil upto 30 cm depth breaking clods, removal of weeds and their undergrowth and other undesired material sunning of the entire volume of dugged up soil and the exposed bed treatment of the soil and the exposed bed with fungicides, mixing manures and fertilizer with dug up soil refilling the bed with enriched soil leveling of the bed and planting of the season flower seddling according to requirement of the site including cost of labour, seedling manures,	35.00	Sq.M	1,000.00	One thousand rupees

	fertilizers, pesticides, etc. including filling the bed with sludge, manure, plants and fertilizer as per specifications.				
105	Planting of creeper and climbers including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction, Allmanda grandiflora, Passiflora, Bejnonia vellausta, Tecoma grandiflora, Comretum orange, etc. each items (upto 2' ht) at least 4 nos. all complete as per specifications.	20.00	Each	350.00	Three hundred fifty rupees
106	Making of Rock garden including making of heap with earth over area and top height 2m supply and setting of decorative rocks in appropriate position and making of planting pocket, filling up of compost in pockets with soil and organic manure as per specifications.	75.00	Cu.M	1,000.00	One thousand rupees
107	Planting of Rockery Plants including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction, <i>Ufornia milli, Adenium, Asperagus falakata, Juniperus prostata, Apluda</i> , etc. each items (upto 2' ht) at least 5 nos. all complete as per specifications.	25.00	Each	350.00	Three hundred fifty rupees
108	Planting of Topiaries including digging hole, filling the hole with sludge, manure and fertilizer as per direction, Golden Doranta, Golden Bottle Brush, <i>Ficus Benjamina</i> , <i>Ficus Panda</i> , etc. each items (upto 5' ht) at least 4 nos. all complete as per specifications.	16.00	Each	750.00	Seven hundred fifty rupees
109	Supplying and stacking of earth at site for mount preparation at different places of park including royalty and carriage as per required.	100.00	Cum	156.00	One hundred fifty six rupes
110	Terracotta Mural works and fiber glass demonstrates with effects on various dimensions on external wall of pump house inclusive of cost of	586.00	Sq. ft.	1,150.00	One thousand one hundred fifty rupees

	raw material, processing of materials, cutting, artistic charges, plaster of peris, paints, varnish, transportation, labor, installation & finishing all complete.				
111	Ceramic Tiles Mural works with effects on one side of pump house or one front wall of toilet (no. 1, size- 8ftX4ft) inclusive of cost of raw material, processing of materials, cutting, artistic charges, plaster of peris, paints, varnish, transportation, labor, installation & finishing all complete.	32.00	Sq. ft.	1,200.00	One thousand two hundred rupees
112	Waterfall type fountain (size: 15ft X10ftX7ft) inclusive of raw material, water pump, lighting, electrical works, plumbing works, Supply, fixing, fitting and commissioning, all complete.	1.00	Each	3,50,000. 00	Three lakhs fifty thousand rupees
113	Garden benches for park all complete as per specifications	6.00	Each	25,000.00	Twenty five thousand rupees
114	Dust bin all complete as per specifications	5.00	Each	6,000.00	Six thousand rupees
115	Steel Letter for park inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Lot	20,000.00	Twenty thousand rupees
116	Delux slide (Sliding) inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	65,000.00	Sixty five thousand rupees
117	Single post swing (Jhula) inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	33,000.00	Thirty tree thousand rupees
118	Balancing beam inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	20,000.00	Twenty thousand rupees
119	Multiseater see-saw inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	26,000.00	Twenty six thousand rupees
120	Sky rocker scrambler inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all	1.00	Each	25,000.00	Twenty five thousand

	complete as per specification.				rupees
121	Horizontal bar inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	24,000.00	Twenty four thousand rupees
122	Platform Merry-Go-Round inclusive of cost of materials, installations, all complete as per specification.	1.00	Each	58,000.00	Fifty eight thousand rupees
123	Earth work in excavation over areas (exceeding 30cm in depth,1.5cm in width as well as 10 Sqm on plan) including disposal of excavated earth, lead up to 50 m and lift up to 1.5m, disposed earth can be levelled neatly dressed: For all type of soil.	81	Cu.M.	130.00	One hundred thirty rupees
124	Providing and fixing brass bibcock of approved quality: 15mm nominal bore	14	Each	125.21	One hundred twenty five rupees & twenty one paisa
125	Providing and fixing C.I fitting of approved make all complete as per specification and Direction of F/I				
	Elbow				
125a	15 mm dia.	30	Each	35.90	Thirty five rupees & ninety paisa
125b	20 mm dia	30	Each	35.90	Thirty five rupees & ninety paisa
125c	25 mmdia	12	Each	35.90	Thirty five rupees & ninety paisa
	Reducing Socket				
125d	25 mm dia	20	Each	48.00	Forty eight rupees
125e	32 mm dia	15	Each	48.00	Forty eight rupees
	TEE(Plain)				

125f	15 mm dia	12	Each	33.70	Thirty three rupees &
125g	25 mm dia	5	Each	44.85	Forty four rupees & eighty five paisa
	Niple				
125h	15 mm dia	20	Each	30.40	Thirty rupees & four paisa
	Plug				
125i	25 mm dia	8	Each	50.20	Fifty rupees & twenty paisa
	Reducing TEE (plain)				
125j	25 mm dia	15	Each	50.20	Fifty rupees & twenty paisa
126	Providing and fixing G.I. Union in G.I pipe including cutting and threading the pipe and making long screws etc. complete: 25 mm nominal bore	10	Each	81.12	Eighty one rupees & twelve paisa
127	Providing and fixing G.I pipes complete with G.I fittings including trenching and refilling etc.				
127a	15 mm dia. Nominal bore	50	Metre	69.00	Sixty nine rupees
127b	20 mm dia nominal bore	20	Metre	85.00	Eighty five rupee s
127c	25mm dia nominal bore	140	Metre	114.00	One hundred fourteen rupees
128	Micro irrigation system for watering landscape, plants, etc. all inclusive of sprinklers, pipes, valves, valves box, controllers, fitting and fixing all inclusive as per specifications.	8.00	Point	3,000.00	Three thousand rupees
129	Providing and fixing water closet	3	Each	2,266.65	Two thousand

	squatting pan (Indian type W.C pan) with 100mm sand cast Iron P or S trap, 10 litre low level white P.V.C flushing cistern with manually controlled device (handle lever) conforming to IS:7231, with all fittings and fixtures complete including cutting and making good the walls and floors wherever required: (HINDWARE/PERIWARE/CERA): White Vitreous china Orissa pattern W.C pan of size 580x440mm with integral type foot rests.				two hundred sixty six rupees & sixty five paisa
130	Providing and fixing white vitreous china flat back or wall corner type lipped front urinal basin of 430x260x350mm and 340x410x265 mm sizes respectively with automatic flushing cistern with standard flush pipe and C.P brass spreaders with brass unions and G.I clamps complete, including painting of fittings and brackets, cutting and making good the walls and floors wherever required. (HINDWARE/PERIWARE/CERA): Urinal basin with 5 litre white P.V.C automatic flushing cistern.	2	Each	1,994.20	One thousand nine hundred ninety four rupees & twenty paisa
131	Providing and fixing wash basin with C.I brackets, 15mm C.P brass pillar taps, 32mm C.P brass waste of standard pattern, including painting of fittings and brackets, cutting and making good the walls wherever require: White Vitreous China Wash basin size 630x450mm with a pair of 15mm C.P brass pillar taps. (HINDWARE/PERIWARE/CERA)	4	Each	1381.70	One thousand three hundred eighty one rupees & seventy paisa
132	Providing and fixing 600x450mm beveled edge mirror of superior glass (of approved quality) complete with 6mm thick hard board ground fixed to wooden cleats with C.P brass screws and washers complete.	4	Each	504.00	Five hundred four rupees
133	Providing and fixing liquid soap container of standard shape with bracket of the same materials with	4	Each	195.50	One hundred ninety five rupees & fifty

	snap fittings of approved quality and colour weighing not less than 105 gms.				paisa
134	Providing and fixing soil waste and vent pipes (100mm dia): Sand cast iron S&S pipe as per IS:1729.	12	Metre	354.75	Three hundred fifty four rupees & seventy five paisa
135	Providing and fixing M.S holder-bat clamps of approved design to Sand Cast iron/cast iron (Spun) pipe embedded in and including cement concrete blocks 10x10x10cm of 1:2:4 mix (1 cement: 2 coarse sand: 4 graded stone aggregate 20mm nominal size) including cost of cutting holes and making good the walls etc.: For 100mm dia pipe	10	Each	61.85	Sixty one rupees & eighty five paisa
136	Providing and fixing bend of required degree with access door, insertion rubber washer 3mm thick, bolts and nuts complete. (100 mm): Sand cast iron S&S pipe as per IS:1729.	7	Each	216.00	Two hundred sixteen rupees
137	Providing and fixing single equal plain junction of required degree with access door, insertion rubber washer 3mm thick, bolts and nuts complete. (100X100X100 mm): Sand cast iron S&S pipe as per IS:1729.	2	Each	297.35	Two hundred ninety seven rupees & thirty five paisa
138	Providing and fixing terminal guard (100mm): Sand cast iron S&S pipe as per IS:1729.	2	Each	145.00	One hundred forty five rupees
139	Providing and fixing trap of self cleansing design with screwed down or hinged grating with or without vent arm complete, including cost of cutting and making good the walls and floors: Sand cast iron S&S as per IS:3989	3	Each	520.00	Five hundred twenty rupees
140	Providing and fixing collar 100mm sand cast Iron S & S for gully trap.	4	Each	13.55	Thirteen rupees & fifty five paisa

141	Providing and fixing C.P brass angle valve for basin points of approved quality conforming to IS 8931. (EAGLE/ COSCO/JUGWARE): 15 mm nominal bore.	4	Each	232.25	Two hundred thirty two rupees & twenty five paisa
142	Providing and fixing C.P brass long nose bib coke of approved quality conforming to IS standards and weighing not less then 690 grams (EAGLE/COSCO/JUGWARE): 15 mm nominal bore.	4	Each	292.19	Two hundred ninety two rupees & nineteen paisa
143	Providing and fixing C.P brass stop cock(concealed) of standards design and of approved make conforming to IS: 8931 (EAGLE/ COSCO/ JUGWARE): 15 mm nominal bore.	10	Each	204.71	Two hundred four rupees & seventy one paisa
144	Providing and fixing unplastised P.V.C connection pipe with brass union. (30 cm length): 15mm nominal bore.	10	Each	52.90	Fifty two rupees & ninety paisa
145	Drinking water facility including construction of platform, water tap outlets (no. 6) for drinking, all inclusive as per specifications	1	Each	45000.00	Forty five thousand rupees
146	Carriage of Materials				
146a	Bricks Lead- 8 km (1K + 7 P) from Local	107	per thousan d & no.	698.80	Six hundred ninety eight rupees & eighty paisa
146b	Coarse sand Lead- (1K + 54 P) K.M. from Koilwar	119	Cu.M	1163.68	One thousand one hundred sixty three rupees & sixty eight paisa
146c	Local sand Lead- 3 km (1K + 2 P) from Local	264	Cu.M	190.24	One hundred ninety rupees & twenty four paisa
146d	Stone chips Lead- (1K + 114 P) K.M. from Gaya	77	Cu.M	2286.88	Two thousand two hundred eighty six rupees &

					eighty eight paisa
146e	Cement Lead- 5 K.M.P. from Local	120	Meter	235.30	Two hundred thirty five rupees & thirty paisa
146f	Steel Lead- 5 K.M.P. from Local	17.7	Meter	235.30	Two hundred thirty five rupees & thirty paisa

